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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 12 MARCH 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  Mr  Myburgh,  good morn ing  

everybody.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes are  we ready? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.   Cha i rpe rson the  f i rs t  

bus iness o f  the  day is  Mr  G igaba and h is  Counse l  a re  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  th ink  i t  was ind i ca ted  yeste rday tha t  

the  hear ing  o f  h is  ev idence wou ld  be  postponed.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  assume you want  to  se t  a  da te  or  

address h im and h is  Counse l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  assume you  have br ie fed  them – h is  

lega l  team about  the  –  the  d iscuss ion  yesterday in  the i r  

absence?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  th ink  they are  aware  o f  the  

d iscuss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   They are  aware  o f  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  had a  br ie f  d iscuss ion  w i th  Mr  20 

So lomons I  canno t  say  tha t  I  acqu i red  –  i t  was ve ry  lengthy  

I  hope I  conveyed  to  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  Mr  G igaba wou ld  no t  be  g iv ing  

ev idence today.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And tha t  he  w i l l  be  se t t ing  anothe r  

da te .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Ja .   We have taken longer  w i th  

p rev ious w i tnesses than was ant ic ipa ted  and we are  now 

on Fr iday hav ing  had –  hav ing  heard  on ly  two w i tnesses Mr  

Myburgh i s  tha t  r i gh t  f rom Monday?  We have had on ly  two 

w i tnesses?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because I  –  I  th ink  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   I t  

seems l i ke  a  lo t  more  bu t  i t  has  on ly  been two yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  so  the  –  we f ind  ourse l ves a t  t he  end  

o f  the  week w i th  more  w i tnesses  who were  schedu led  to  

g ive  ev idence th is  week.   We had a  d iscuss ion  in  your  

absence yeste rday w i th  regard  to  what  shou ld  happen  

whethe r  i t  shou ld  be  Mr  G igaba who wou ld  take  the  w i tness  

s tand th is  morn ing  or  Mr  S ingh and i t  seems tha t  we shou ld  

tha t  Mr  S ingh  take  the  w i tness s tand th is  morn ing  

par t i cu la r l y  because we are  aware  tha t  there  are  some new 

deve lopments  wh ich  Mr  G igaba might  w ish  to  have t ime to 

look  a t  so  tha t  when he takes the  w i tness s tand  he can 20 

dea l  w i th  a l l  mat te rs  inc lud ing  recent  ones.  

 So –  bu t  I  sa id  ar rangements  shou ld  be  made fo r  

you to  be  here  th is  morn ing  so  tha t  we shou ld  no t  jus t  

d iscuss in  your  absence and f ina l i se  th ings and we  shou ld  

hear  i f  you  have anyth ing  to  say bu t  tha t  i s  what  we  
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p ropose to  do .  

 Counse l  fo r  Mr  G igaba wou ld  you l i ke  to  say  

someth ing?  You  can speak f rom where  you are  i f  your  

m icrophone is  work ing  and tha t  i s  conven ien t  o therw ise  

you can go to  the  pod ium a f te r  they have san i t i sed .  

MR SOLOMONS SC:   Cha i r  we cou ld  –  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SOLOMONS SC:   F i r s t  good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  to  you.  

MR SOLOMONS SC:   Yes,  no  the  on ly  th ing  we wou ld  l i ke  10 

to  add is  we apprec ia te  we w i l l  no t  be  heard  today – th i s  

sess ion  he  had kept  h imse l f  ava i lab le  th is  week.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR SOLOMONS SC:   We are  no t  sure  what  the  new 

deve lopments  are  bu t  we – we t rus t  we w i l l  be  t imeous ly  

adv ised o f  –  o f  these new deve lopments  so  tha t  we can 

respond in  te rms o f  3 .3  i f  necessary.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SOLOMONS SC:   3 .3 .6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR SOLOMONS SC:   And –  and then a l so  we had rece ived 

k ind l y  f rom ev idence leader  Myburgh SC an emai l  on  the  

3 r d  o f  March wh ich  se t  ou t  fa i r l y  the  areas tha t  he  in tended  

to  cover  and the  mater ia l  tha t  we wou ld  need to  app ly  ou r  

m inds to  in  o rde r  to  p repare  Mr  G igaba fo r  tha t  
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examinat ion  wh ich  we have obv ious ly  done.   

 I f  there  i s  mater ia l  to  be  covered on the  next  

occas ion  we wou ld  k ind ly  ask  tha t  he  then communica te  

w i th  us  in  wr i t ing  as  to  what  these  o ther  a reas are  so  tha t  

we can proper  p repare  and then  whenever  Mr  G igaba is  

then to  be  expec ted i f  those dates  cou ld  be  ar ranged w i th  

myse l f  and my jun io r  Advocate  Gumbi  w i th in  reason  I  mean 

we a re  no t  –  bu t  w i th in  reason I  mean we a re  no t  go ing  to  

–  to  –  the  commiss ion  has go t  i t s  work  to  do  w i th in  reason.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  10 

MR SOLOMONS SC:   That  i s  a l l  I  have to  say.   Thank you  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  sa id  deve lopments  

maybe tha t  i s  no t  the  r igh t  te rm but  Mr  Myburgh wou ld  

share  w i th  you what  I  am ta lk ing  about .   Maybe i t  i s  jus t  a  

mat te r  no t  a  deve lopment .   But  thank you fo r  you r  

coopera t ion  we –  I  apprec ia te  t ha t  i t  i s  no t  the  best  

a r rangement  where  you wa i t  fo r  a  who le  week you  have a  

lega l  team ready  and  then you are  no t  ab le  to  be  heard .   

But  obv ious ly  we  are  jus t  t ry ing  to  do  the  best  we can in  a  20 

very  d i f f i cu l t  s i tua t ion  where  there  are  very  se r ious t ime 

const ra in ts .   So we –  we apprec ia te  your  coopera t ion .  We 

are  go ing  to  f i x  a  da te  soon.   The approach we adopt  i s  

tha t  i f  we are  go ing  to  f i x  a  da te  t ha t  we th ink  i s  w i th in  a  

shor t  space o f  t ime we w i l l  –  the  lega l  team wi l l  negot ia te  
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those dates bu t  i f  we th ink  we are  g iv ing  you reasonab le  

t ime we w i l l  jus t  f i x  the  da tes .   But  I  have no doubt  tha t  a l l  

a t tempts  w i l l  be  done by  everybody to  t ry  and make th ings 

happen.   Thank you fo r  your  unders tand ing .  

MR SOLOMONS SC:   No thank you Cha i r  and we  

apprec ia te  the  work  t he  commiss ion  does and we cont inue 

to  o f fe r  our  coopera t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you ve ry  much.   Okay.   To  the  

ex ten t  tha t  you may need to  be  excused you a re  excused.  

MR SOLOMONS SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  Cha i rpe rson the  next  o rde r  o f  the 

day is  the  ev idence o f  Mr  S ingh.   Might  I  jus t  say  th is?   On  

Wednesday we rece ived a  shor t  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  

f rom Mr  S ingh bu t  i t  inc luded over  400 pages o f  annexures 

p lead ings in  a  ser ies  o f  c iv i l  c la ims.   Yesterday we  

rece ived a  70  page supp lementary  a f f idav i t  f rom Mr  S ingh.   

We a lso  rece ived th ree  emai l s  tha t  may impact  upon the  

proceed ings today.   And then th is  morn ing  we rece ived  

another  30  page  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  f rom Mr  S ingh 20 

together  w i th  wha t  I  unders tand is  an  exper t  repor t .  

 Now we need to  make our  pos i t ion  very  c lea r  we a re  

no t  ob jec t ing  to  th is  in  fac t  up  un t i l  today and I  hope i t  

cont inues we have had a  very  const ruc t i ve  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  Mr  S ingh and h i s  lega l  adv isors  fo r  wh ich  we are  
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thankfu l .   But  you w i l l  apprec ia te  Cha i r  tha t  we need to  

cons ider  th is  new mate r ia l  s imp ly  w i th  a  v iew to  

de termin ing  what  shou ld  be  le f t  ou t  today and wha t  shou ld  

be  dea l t  w i th  next  t ime.   We hope tha t  tha t  i s  someth ing  

tha t  we can do in  ha l f  hour  o r  an  hour  bu t  I  th ink  i t  wou ld  –  

i t  wou ld  be  appropr ia te  i f  we cou ld  be  a f fo rded tha t  t ime 

o therwise  I  m ight  s ta r t  dea l ing  w i th  i ssues tha t  g i ve  r i se  to  

ob jec t ions and we go around and around the  mulbe r ry  bush 

I  am very  sor ry  to  ask  bu t  i f  we cou ld  have maybe a  ha l f  an  

hour  ad journment  I  th ink  i t  p robab ly  speed up th ings .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I  th ink  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  am sure  they  

have no prob lem ja  –  we are  a t  about  twe lve  m inutes  to  ten  

sha l l  we make i t  ha l f  past  ten  –  ha l f  past  ten?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  am sor ry.   Ja  ha l f  past  ten .   Okay.   

Okay we w i l l  ad journ  un t i l  ha l f  past  ten .  We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  tha t  he lp  Mr  Myburgh.  20 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rperson,  Mr  S ingh is  lega l l y  

rep resented.   I  wonder  whether  you wou ld  l i ke  h i s  counse l  

to  p lace  herse l f  on  record  be fo re  we proceed fu r ther?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Good morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good morn ing .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Anne l ine  van den Heever.   I  

rep resent  Mr  S ingh on ins t ruc t ions o f  Mr  Tshepo Mathopo 

o f  Mathopo A t to rneys.   He is  s i t t ing  next  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you very  much.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Thank you  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Okay Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  admin is te r  the  oa th ,  reg is t ra r,  o r  

a f f i rmat ion .    

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

WITNESS:    Ano j  S ingh.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  in  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

WITNESS:    No,  Ma’am.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

WITNESS:    I  do .  20 

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g ive ,  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  

so  he lp  me God.  

WITNESS:    So  he lp  me God.  
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ANOJ SINGH :   (d .s .s )  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   You may be  seated  

Mr  S ingh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rperson,  fu r ther  to  our  

d iscuss ions.   What  we have dec ided is  tha t  fo r  the  

purposes o f  today ’s  ev idence,  we  w i l l  r ing  fence and not  

dea l  w i th  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  locomot ives .   The  

re loca t ion  o f  the  OEM’s ,  the  issues in  re la t ion  to  the 

t ransact ion  adv isors  and consu l tancy cont rac t  bu t  

e f fec t i ve l y  we r ing  fence every th ing  to  do  w i th  the 10 

locomot ives .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  i s  a l so ,  Cha i rpe rson,  an  

agreement  tha t  –  and we w i l l  no t  re fe r  to  cer ta in  l im i ted  

documenta t ion  and tha t  we w i l l  no t  re fe r  to  one  or  two 

spec i f i c  a f f idav i t s .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  we then in tend to  dea l  w i th  

today is ,  o f  course ,  someth ing  to  tha t  th ree  top i cs  re la t ing  

to  Mr  S ingh ’s  persona l  c i r cumstances.   We wi l l  exp lo re  any  20 

re la t ionsh ip  tha t  he  m ight  have had w i th  the  Gupta ’s .   We 

in tend to  dea l  w i t h  Wi tness 3 ,  the  dr iver.   We in tend  to  dea l  

w i th  ce r ta in  contex tua l  top i cs ,  l i ke ,  the  MDS,  BADC and the  

De legat ion  o f  Author i t y.  

 Then we w i l l  leave out  the  locomot ives  and we  
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w i l l  then to  aux i l ia ry  th ings,  l i ke  fo r  example ,  the  Neote l  

cont rac ts ,  the  Manganese Expans ion  P ro jec t ,  Mr  Gama’s  

lega l  fees,  Aba loz i  and tha t  sor t  o f  th ing  bu t  you are  no t  

go ing  to  be  hear ing  anyth ing  abou t  the  locomot ives .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   That  w i l l  be  

dea l t  w i th  a t  some o ther  t ime?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  once we have had an 

oppor tun i ty  to  look  th rough the  a f f idav i t  and then  we w i l l  

come and dea l  w i th  tha t  spec i f i ca l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  10 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  so r ry  to  in te r rup t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  have ind ica ted  to  Mr  Myburgh  

tha t  my c l ien t  does not  in tend to  do  any open ing  s ta tement .   

He does,  however,  a  remark  tha t  he  w ish  to  make  before  

the  proceed ings commence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Thank you very  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And the  remark  w i l l  no t  imp l ica te  

anybody?  20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    No,  i t  does not  imp l ica te  

anybody.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  i s  th is  the  r igh t  t ime fo r  h im 
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to  do  tha t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  have  d iscussed th is  w i th  my 

learned f r i end.   I  am sat is f ied  tha t  he  does not  in tend to  

imp l ica te  anyone.   So we are  happy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sub jec t  to  your  d i rec t ion  fo r  h im to 

do  tha t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a l r i gh t .   Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH :    Thank you Mr  Cha i rman.   So the  remark  

re la tes  to  me,  l i ke ,  to  make an open ing  s ta tement .   We are  10 

in  possess ion  o f  the  Cha i rman ’s  ru l ing  in  th i s  regard  and 

g iven the  fac t  tha t  we need to  comply  w i th  your  ru l ing ,  we 

have not  been  in  a  pos i t ion  to  submi t  the  open ing  

s ta tement  to  you  as  requ i red  in  the  ru l ing .   We wou ld ,  

however,  l i ke  to  p lace  on record  tha t  we wou ld  l i ke  to  make 

cer ta in  comments  a t  an  appropr ia te  t ime dur ing  the  

proceed ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me make sure  I  fo l low tha t .   You 

wou ld  l i ke  to  make some s ta tement  a t  some s tage  dur ing  

the  proceed ing?  20 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  today?  

MR SINGH :    Not  today.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Some s tage?  

MR SINGH :    A t  some s tage.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a f te r  I  have been g i ven the  

documents?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .   That  i s  f ine .   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   

Cha i rperson,  Mr  S ingh ’s  va r ious a f f idav i t s  appear  in  

Transnet  Bund le  5(b)  and i t  i s  marked Exh ib i t  BB-23.   

There  are  a  se r ies  o f  four  a f f idav i t s  in  tha t  bund le  wh ich  I  

wou ld  ask  you  to  admi t  and I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  each  o f  them in  

tu rn .   Mr  S ingh,  cou ld  you p lease . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  one second.   Reg is t ra r.   Yes,  

Mr  Myburgh.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON :    There  is  f i l e  tha t  I  need wh ich  apparent ly  

i s  no t  here  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  a  f i le  tha t  you wou ld  have known 

about .   I  am sure  there  is  another  one but  I  jus t  want  one 

on wh ich  I  have worked wh ich  w i l l  be  much more . . .  to  look  

a t  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  we can proceed in  the  meant ime.    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  S ingh,  

cou ld  I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 436 ,  p lease?  

MR SINGH :    I  am there  s i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  you w i l l  f ind  an  a f f idav i t  i f  you  

tu rn  fo rward .   That  a f f idav i t  runs f rom 436 to  page 468 and  

i t  appears  to  have been  deposed to  on  the  

26 t h  o f  January  2020.   That  you w i l l  see  a t  the  foo t  o f  page 

467.   Would  you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And wou ld  you conf i rm the  t ru th  and 

accuracy o f  th is  a f f idav i t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  so  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rperson,  may I  ask  you to  admi t  10 

Mr  S ingh ’s  a f f idav i t  tha t  commences a t  page 436 as  Exh ib i t  

23 .3 .1?  

CHAIRPERSON :    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  s ta r t ing  

a t  page 436 is  admi t ted  and i t  w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  

23 .3 .1 .  

FIRST AFFIDAVIT  OF ANOJ SINGH IS ADMITTED AND 

MARKED AS EXHIBIT  23 .3 .1  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  so r ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Jus t  a  po in t  o f  cor rec t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    The da te  i s  2021 and not  2020 

as  Mr  Myburgh ind ica ted .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay what  i s  the  cor rec t  da te?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    The co r rec t  da te  i s  

26 t h  o f  January  2021.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  tha t  i s  the  da te  o f  the  a f f idav i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  no .   That  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  i f  you  can . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on.   Oh,  I  th ink  there  are  

two a f f idav i t s  fo l low ing each o the r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  w i l l  come to  the  second one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  

tu rn  now to  page 469?  

MR SINGH :    I  am there  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  you w i l l  f ind  another  a f f idav i t  

tha t  runs f rom 469 th rough to  484.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  appears  a t  484 and hopefu l l y  I  

w i l l  ge t  the  year  r igh t  th is  t ime.   I t  was deposed to  on  the  

2 n d  o f  February  2021.   Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you conf i rm the  t ru th  and 

accuracy o f  th is  a f f idav i t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rpe rson,  cou ld  I  ask  you,  

p lease,  to  admi t  Mr  S ingh ’s  a f f idav i t  tha t  commences a t  
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page 469 as  Exh ib i t  23 .3 .2?  

CHAIRPERSON :    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Ano j  S ingh tha t  s ta r ts  

a t  page 469 is  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and w i l l  be  marked 

as  Exh ib i t  23 .3 .2 .  

SECOND AFFIDAVIT  OF ANOJ SINGH IS ADMITTED AND 

MARKED AS EXHIBIT  23 .3 .2  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  cou ld  I  then ask  you,  

p lease to  tu rn  fo rward  to  page 1013? 

MR SINGH :    I  am there  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   You w i l l  see  tha t  a t  1013  10 

the  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  commences.   I t  i s  re la t i ve l y  

shor t .   I t  runs up  unt i l  1051.  

MR SINGH :    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  con ta ins  a  la rge  number  o f  

annexures,  p lead ings in  a  number  o f  cases.   Those 

annexures run  a l l  the  way up to  1430.   Can I  ask  you to  

conf i rm tha t ,  p lease?  So up unt i l  1430.  

MR SINGH :    I  conf i rm s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  then ask  you,  p lease,  to  go  

back to  page 1015 and ask you,  p lease,  to  conf i rm tha t  th is  20 

supp lementary  a f f idav i t  was deposed to  you by  on  the  

10 t h  o f  March 2012?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can you conf i rm the  t ru th  and  

accuracy o f  th is  a f f idav i t?  
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MR SINGH :    I  do  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Cha i rpe rson,  cou ld  I  ask  you to  

admi t  Mr  S ingh ’s  a f f idav i t  commences a t  page 1013 as  

Exh ib i t  BB-23.6?  

CHAIRPERSON :    BB. . .?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    23 .6 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Ano j  S ingh together  

w i th  i t s  annexures is  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and  w i l l  be  

marked as  Exh ib i t  BB-23.6 .  

SUPPLEMENTARY AFFIDAVIT  WITH ANNEXURES OF 10 

ANOJ SINGH IS ADMITTED AND MARKED AS 

EXHIBIT  BB-23.6  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  cou ld  I  then ask  you,  

f ina l l y,  to  tu rn ,  p lease,  to  page 1431? 

MR SINGH :    I  am there  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  the  fu r ther  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  tha t  commences there  and ends a t  page 1501.   I t  

has  a  few annexures.   Those annexures run  up  un t i l  1505.   

Would  you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH :    150 . . .  Ja ,  1506.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon.   I t  i s  in  fac t  1506.   

I  see  the re  is  a  page a t  the  back.   Thank you.   I f  you  cou ld  

go  back,  p lease,  to  page 1501.   Would  you conf i rm tha t  you  

deposed to  th is  a f f idav i t  on  the  10 t h  o f  March 2021?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i t s  cor rec t  s i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    And wou ld  you conf i rm the  t ru th  and 

accuracy o f  the  a f f idav i t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  ask  tha t  you  

admi t  Mr  S ingh ’s  fu r ther  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  

commencing  a t  page 1431 as  Exh ib i t  23 .7 .    

CHAIRPERSON :    The supp lementary  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Ano j  

S ingh tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 1431 is  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  

and w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  23 .7 .  

FURTHER SUPPLEMENTARY AFF IDAVIT  OF ANOJ SINGH 10 

IS  ADMITTED AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT  BB-23.7  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Mr  S ingh,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

jus t  s ta r t  ou t  by  ask ing  you one  or  two quest ions about  

your  persona l  de ta i l s .   Am I  unders tand ing  cor rec t  t ha t  you 

were  the  ac t ing  CFO of  Transnet  fo r  a  per iod  o f  t ime? 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    2009 to  2012?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you were  then appo in ted  as  the  

CFO of  Transnet ,  as  I  unders tand,  on  the  1s t  o f  Ju ly  2012.   20 

Is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you  then cont inued  in  tha t  

pos i t ion  un t i l  you  moved to  Eskom.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    When was tha t  move?  

MR SINGH :    On the  1 s t  o f  August  2015.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Were  you in i t ia l l y  seconded to 

Eskom? 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  tha t  secondment  took up  or  took 

p lace on the  1s t  o f  August  2015?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    As  we unders tand i t ,  Mr  Mole fe ’s  

secondment  to  Eskom p receded  yours  by  th ree  or  four  10 

months .   Does tha t  accord  w i th  your  reco l lec t ion?  

MR SINGH :    I  am not  exact ly  sure  o f  the  number  o f  months  

bu t  he  preceded mine.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And  pr io r  to  Mr  Mole fe ’s  

secondment ,  I  take  i t  tha t  you then repor ted  to  h im in  h is  

pos i t ion  as  the  Group Ch ie f  Execu t ive?  

MR SINGH :    O f  Transnet ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    And a f te r  he  was seconded to  Eskom before  

you were  seconded,  you repor ted  fo r  tha t  shor t  per iod  o f  20 

t ime to  Mr  Gama? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  S ingh,  what  a re  your  qua l i f i ca t ions? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  ho ld  a  Bache lo r  o f  Account ing  

Degree f rom the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Durban Westv i l le  a t  the  t ime.   
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I  a lso  ho ld  a  Pos tgraduate  D ip loma in  Account ing  f rom the 

same sa id  un i ve rs i t y  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Speak up a  b i t  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  I  am sor ry  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  am sor ry.   Mr  S ingh,  one o the r  

th ing .   Perhaps I  shou ld  have to ld  you before .   I  w i l l  ask  

you the  quest ions,  i f  you  can d i rec t  your  answers  to  the 

Cha i rperson?  

MR SINGH :    Okay.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  more  impor tan t  fo r  h im to  hear  

than me and I  am s i t t ing  c loser  to  you.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So le t  us  s ta r t  aga in .   Your  

qua l i f i ca t ions?  

MR SINGH :    So  I  ho ld  a  Bache lor  o f  Account ing  Degree  

f rom the  Un ive rs i t y  o f  Durban Wes tv i l le  a t  the  t ime.   I  a lso  

ho ld  a  Postgraduate  D ip loma in  Accountancy f rom the  same 

sa id  un i ve rs i t y.   And I  was fo r  a  per iod  o f  t ime adm i t ted  as  

a  Char te red Accountant  a t  South  A f r i can Ins t i tu te  o f  20 

Char te red Accountants  un t i l ,  I  th ink ,  December  2010(?)  o r  

so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And so  jus t  f rom a  broad  

perspect ive .   What  i s  tha t  you d id  be fo re  you took up  the  

pos i t ion  as  CFO of  Transnet  o r  ac t ing  CFO of  Transnet  in  
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2009?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i rman,  I  was –  post  ob ta in ing  my 

degrees a t  the  Un ive rs i t y  o f  Durban Westv i l le ,  I  served a  

t ra ineesh ip  w i th  B Or ig in  Techno logy (? )  fo r  a  pe r iod  o f  

th ree  years .   I  s tayed w i th  the  f i rm,  thought ,  fo r  a round 

four  years .   Post  tha t ,  I  took  up  a  pos i t ion  w i th  the  Spar  

Group in  KZN unt i l  2002.   In  2003,  I  re loca ted to  

Johannesburg  and took up  a  pos i t ion  w i th  the  then  

Spoornet  wh ich  was,  obv ious ly,  a  d iv is ion  o f  Transnet  as  a  

Sen io r  Manager  o r  a  pos i t ion  as  Sen ior  Manager,  10 

Corpora te  F inanc ia l  Serv ices .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  one o ther  in t roductory  po in t .   

A re  you in  a  pos i t ion  to  be  ab le  to  conf i rm tha t  a f te r  you 

moved to  Eskom,  your  successor  was Mr  P i ta  as  the  CFO? 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  we tu rn  to  the  top ic  o f  your  

re la t ionsh ip ,  i f  any,  w i th  the  Gup ta ’s .   Cou ld  I  ask  you,  

have you eve r  had an occas ion  to  go  to  the  Saxonwold  

res idence o f  the  Gupta ’s?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  d id  on  occas ion  had oppor tun i ty  to  20 

go  to  the  Gupta  res idence.   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And when you say on  occas ion .   How 

many occas ions?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  the  reasons fo r  my v i s i t  to  the 

Gupta  res idence  was based on cu l tu re  reasons.   There  
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were  re l ig ious funct ions tha t  were  he ld .   In  the  Ind ian  

communi ty,  you a re  normal ly  inv i ted  to  these funct ions and  

based on my ava i lab i l i t y,  I  wou ld  on  occas ion . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Wel l ,  the  f i rs t  quest ion  I  asked 

you is .   On how many occas ions d id  you go to  t he  Gupta  

res idence?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  have to  hazard  a  ve ry,  very  

w i ld  guess and I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  p robab ly,  I  th ink  less  

than ten  t imes.   Probab ly  less  than  ten .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  I  am sor ry.   Perhaps I  d id  no t  ge t  10 

the  f i rs t  pa r t  o f  your  answer.   I  reca l l  you  say ing  you a t tend 

re l ig ious funct ions.   I  th ink  you ment ioned tha t  you a l so  

had occas ion  to  go  there  fo r  o ther  reasons?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cu l tu ra l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  I  beg your  pardon.   Cu l tu re .  

MR SINGH :    Cu l tu re  and re l ig ious.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Re l ig ious.   Oh,  yes ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cu l tu ra l  and re l ig ious. . .   So those –  

tha t  was the  cause o f  you go ing  to  the  Gupta  res idence  20 

and you say you es t imate  about  ten  t imes?  

MR SINGH :    Ten t imes wou ld  be  the  max imum.   I t  i s  

p robab ly  less .   Between f i ve  and ten .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And over  what  per iod  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Over  what  per iod?   
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  we are  ask ing  the  same quest ion ,  

ja .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Over  what  per iod? 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  my f i rs t  in te rac t ions w i th  the  Gupta  

fami ly  wou ld  have been as  a  resu l t  o f  a t tendance  to  the 

TNA Breakfas t  wh ich  Transnet  wou ld  have sponsored.   So I  

assume i t  wou ld  be  tha t  per iod  o f  t ime wh ich  probab ly  

wou ld  have been around 2011/2012 . . .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    In  te rms o f  t im ing .   And then I  wou ld  assume 

in f requent ly  in  be tween f rom tha t  per iod  o f  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    My assoc ia t ion  was not  very  in t imate .   I  

mean,  fo r  example ,  I  d id  no t . . .   Sor ry  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  was not?  

MR SINGH :    Very  in t imate  w i th  the  fami ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    I  knew them.   I  knew o f  them.   My. . .   For  20 

example ,  I  d id  no t  a t tend the  wedd ing ,  fo r  examp le .   The 

Gupta  wedd ing  or  the  Sun C i ty  wedd ing .   So f rom tha t  

perspect ive  I  d id  no t  see any need  fo r  me to . . .  myse l f  w i th  

them or  fo r  them to  do  the  same wi th  me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you s ta r ted  go ing  there  in  2011  
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o r  2012?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r.   My assoc ia t ion  w i th  them? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    The f i rs t  t ime I  met  them was as  a  resu l t  o f  

the  TNA Breakfas t  wh ich  I  wou ld  assume s tar ted  around. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then you cont inued to  go  there  

occas iona l l y.   Up unt i l  when?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  aga in  hazard  to  g ive  you a  guess.   I  

wou ld  say p robab ly  2015 or  so ,  2016 or  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And what  caused you to  s top  go ing  10 

there  in  2015 or  so?  

MR SINGH :    A t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime,  there  were  a l l  o f  these 

a l legat ions and a l l  o f  these media  specu la t ion  re la t ing  to  

the  fami ly  a t  the  t ime and not  tha t  I  be l ieve  tha t  any o f  the  

specu la t ion  or  i ssues re la t ing  to  our  re la t ionsh ip  be tween  

mine and the i rs  i s  i r regu la r  bu t  I  jus t  thought  a t  tha t  po in t  

in  t ime i t  wou ld  be  prudent  to  no t  v is i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now d id  you have occas ion  to  

rec ip rocate?  D id  you ever  inv i te  the  Gupta ’s  ou t  fo r  d inner  

o r  to  your  house or  was i t  on ly  you  go ing  to  the i rs?  20 

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r,  I  d id  no t  inv i te  the  Gupta ’s  to  my 

house.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And wh ich  member  o f  the  Gupta  

fami ly  wou ld  you in te rac t  w i th  on  these occas ions tha t  you  

a t tended the  Saxonwold  res idence? 
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MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  the  re l ig ious funct ions were  

a t tended by  a  number  o f  peop le  and th i s  i s  no rmal ly  the  

case.   So I  had occas ion  to  meet  Mr  A tho l  Gupta ,  

Mr  Ra jesh Gupta ,   Mr  AJ Gupta  as  we l l ,  no t . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And le t  me then tu rn  to . . .   Wel l ,  

perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you.   These cu l tu ra l  and re l ig ious 

funct ions tha t  you a t tended,  wou ld  they typ ica l l y  be  a f te r  

hours ,  on  the  weekends?  Obv ious ly,  on  any par t i cu la r  

re l ig ious day.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  the  ones tha t  come to  m ind is  obv ious ly  10 

the  D iwa l i  func t ions and the  D iwa l i  func t ion  wou ld  

depend ing  on when the  occas ion  o f  D iwa l i  wou ld  fa l l  in  

the . . .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   D id  you,  Mr  S ingh,  have  

occas ion  to  v is i t  the  o f f i ces  o f  Sahara  Compute rs?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  d id  have occas ion  to  v is i t  the  – 

no t  en ter  in to  the  o f f i ces  o f  Sahara  bu t  I  cer ta in ly  knew 

where  Sahara  Compute rs  was.   I  d id  v is i t  the  –  how can I  

say  –  the  en t rance o f  the  o f f i ce  in  tha t  my cur ren t  w i fe  

used to  work  fo r  Sahara .   So on occas ion ,  I  used to  e i ther  20 

p ick  her  up . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you say  your  cur ren t  w i fe  worked  

a t  Sahara  Computers?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    For  what  pe r iod  o f  t ime was tha t?  
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MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  i t  wou ld  have been  

somet ime in  2014  or  so ,  I  th ink  tha t  she wou ld  have s tar ted  

there  or  2013.   I  am not  too  sure  o f  the  da te .   And then,  

she le f t ,  I  th ink  in  2015.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  she worked there  fo r  

approx imate l y  a  year?  

MR SINGH :    A year  and a  ha l f  o r  so  i f  no t  two.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And jus t  so  tha t  I  unders tand your  

ev idence.   Do I  unders tand  tha t  you wou ld  go  there  to  fe tch  

he r.   I  mean,  you say you d id  no t  go  in to  the  o f f i ce .  10 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  I  wou ld  go  to  fe tch  her  o r  I  wou ld  drop  

her  o f f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So you never,  i f  I  unders tand  

your  ev idence co r rec t l y,  you never  en tered the  o f f i ces  o f  

Sahara  Compute rs?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then Mr  Essa.   D id  you have  

occas ion  to  meet  h im? 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  met  Mr  Essa on probab ly  one or  

two occas ions a t  h is  request  and i t  was fo r  the  purposes o f  20 

jus t  hav ing  a  d iscuss ion  assoc ia ted  w i th  bus iness 

oppor tun i t ies  tha t  he  may have had in  re la t ion  to  Transnet  

bu t  i t  was o f  no  in te res t  to  e i ther  o f  us  and tha t  was the  

end o f  tha t  re la t ionsh ip .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  where  d id  you meet  w i th  Mr  Essa  
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on  these one o r  two occas ions?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  –  because  i t  was a  re la t i ve ly  long 

t ime ago.   So I  do  no t  remember  exact ly  where  bu t  i t  wou ld 

have –  i t  was ce r ta in ly  no t  a t  the  Transnet  o f f i ces .   So i t  

wou ld  have been an outs ide  venue.   I  am not  sure .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Perhaps Me l rose Arch?  

MR SINGH :    I t  may have been.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you say tha t  these one or  two 

meet ings occur red  a t  Mr  Essa ’s  request?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    To  d i scuss,  i f  I  my note  o f  you r  

ev idence is  r igh t ,  bus iness oppor tun i t ies  a t  Transnet?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now what  sor t  o f  th ings d id  you 

d iscuss there  w i th  Mr  Essa du r ing  these one or  two 

meet ings?  

MR SINGH :    A t  tha t  t ime,  I  th ink  he  –  I  am not  too  sure  

what  the  exact  de ta i l s  o f  those d i scuss ions were  bu t  as  I  

sa id ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  d iscuss ion  ac tua l l y  never  went  any  

fu r ther  than those one o r  two mee t ings.   So I  d id  no t  rea l l y  20 

pay any a t ten t ion  to  any issues tha t  emanated f rom these  

meet ings.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  can you not  reca l l  the  top ic  o r  

content  o f  the  meet ings?  

MR SINGH :    I f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  wou ld  have  
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been what  Mr  Essa wou ld  have been invo lved in  a t  the  t ime 

and how he wou ld  have probab ly  in  want ing  to  p rov ide  

serv i ces  to  Transnet . . .   And I  can on ly  conc lude tha t  g iven  

the  fac t  tha t  he  was not  ac tua l l y  invo l ved in  much Transnet  

re la ted  bus iness  a t  the  t ime,  we never  pursue the 

d iscuss ions any fu r the r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So what  bus iness d id  you  

unders tand Mr  Essa to  be  invo l ved in?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  a t  tha t  t ime,  I  th ink  he  was  look ing  

a t  oppor tun i t ies  in  o i l  and gas i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y.   10 

Oppor tun i t ies  in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  to  supp ly  same to  

Transnet .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  wha t  company d id  Mr  Essa  

purpor t  to  work  fo r  o r  rep resent?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  those deta i l s .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  wou ld  l i ke  now,  p lease,  to  take  you  

to  the  ev idence o f  Wi tness 3 .   I f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  p lease  

Mr  S ingh,  to  tu rn  beh ind  you and  to  pu l l  ou t  Bund le  BB-

14(d) .  

MR SINGH :    You  sa id  l i t t le  D? 20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  you sa id  l i t t le  D?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB-14(d) .  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  p lease,  to  
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tu rn  up  page 122? 

MR SINGH :    A re  you do ing  the  red  numbers ,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  there  is  on ly  one number.   Ja ,  

i f  i t  –  there  is  on ly  one number.   So I  th ink  I  have re fer red  

to  the  red  ones here ,  yes .  

MR SINGH :    122? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    122.  

MR SINGH :    I  am there  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now Mr  S ingh,  no  doubt  you had  

care fu l  regard  to  th is  a f f idav i t  and the  ev idence o f  Wi tness  10 

3?  

MR SINGH :    I  have s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now the  a f f idav i t  dea ls  -  has two  

par t s  to  i t .   F i rs t l y,  i t  dea ls  w i th  Mr  G igaba and the  CPO 

serv i ces  rendered to  h im and then in  the  second par t  i f  I  

cou ld  ask  you to  go  to  page 127 ,  i t  dea ls  w i th  the  CPO 

serv i ces  rendered to  you and tha t  runs f rom page 127  

th rough to  132,  f ive  pages o r  so .  

MR SINGH:    I  no te  tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Now perhaps before  I  take  you to  the  20 

content  o f  th is  af f idav i t  and we may go th rough i t  on  a  

parag raph by  paragraph bas is ,  what  i s  your  ove ra l l  

response to  the  ev idence o f  w i tness 3?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  when we f i rs t  heard  o f  w i tness 3  i t  

was ac tua l l y  v ia  the  med ia ,  so  the  Commiss ion  was not  
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g rac ious enough  to  adv ise  us  in  advance tha t  w i tness 3  

was go ing  to  tes t i f y  in  th is  mat te r  so  we were  re la t i ve ly  

perp lexed by  h is  ev idence and concerned by  h is  ev idence  

g iven the  in fe rences and the  a l legat ions tha t  he  lev ied  

aga ins t  us ,  aga ins t  me.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes,  bu t  my quest ion  was,  what  i s  your  

overa l l  response to  the  content  o f  h is  ev idence? 

MR SINGH:    In  dea l ing  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  we were  

re la t i ve ly  concerned –  we l l ,  no t  re la t i ve ly,  very  concerned  

about  the  a l legat ions conta ined in  h is  a f f idav i t .   I  s tud ies  10 

h is  a f f idav i t  qu i te  c lose ly  and found tha t  h i s  ev idence was  

rea l l y  no t  very  c red ib le  and spur ious in  na tu re  and  hence 

my leve l  o f  concern  was re la t i ve l y  d im in i shed and  I  a lso  

had oppor tun i ty  to  have been  fo rewarned about  th is  

a f f idav i t  by  w i tness 3  h imse l f  p robab ly,  I  wou ld  say –  in  

t im ing-wise  I  am not  too  su re  bu t  I  th ink  probab ly  s ix  to  

e igh t  months  in  advance and th is  had or ig ina ted  in  a  

te lephone ca l l  tha t  I  rece ived f rom wi tness 3  tha t  bas ica l l y  

desc r ibed the  fac t  tha t  he  was requested to  p rov ide  an  

a f f idav i t  o r  p rov ide  ev idence or  tes t imony regard ing  h is  20 

ac t iv i t ies  w i th  me as the  CPO or  c lose  p ro tec t ion  o f f i cer  

tha t  he  was and  he d id  re ference ind iv idua ls  a t  Transnet  

tha t  were  p ressur i s ing  h im to  prov ide  th is  t ype o f  

in fo rmat ion  and he a lso  re ferenced the  Commiss ion  or  the  

invest iga to rs  o f  the  Commiss ion  and so  I  then asked – I  
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sa id  so ,  w i tness  3 ,  what  t ype o f  in fo rmat ion  a re  they 

look ing  fo r?   And he then d id  no t  d i rec t l y  re fe rence the  

v is i t s  o r  the  a l leged v is i t s ,  a l l  he  sa id  was you know what  

in fo rmat ion  they are  look ing  fo r.   And I  then sa id  okay –  

sor ry,  aga in ,  I  sa id  w i tness 3 ,  bu t  tha t  i s  o f  no  issue or  

concern ,  you are  employed by  Transnet ,  i f  there  i s  an  

o f f i c ia l  request  tha t  Transnet  i s  mak ing  o f  you,  you shou ld  

comply  and aga in ,  the  Commiss ion  is  a  lega l l y  cons t i tu ted  

body,  i f  there  i s  a  need fo r  you to  p rov ide  any in fo rmat ion   

p lease do so  and,  a t  the  end o f  the  day,  whatever  10 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  you prov ide  to  them,  as  fa r  as  i t  re la tes  to  

our  ac t i v i t ies ,  you and I  bo th  know tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  

they seek does not  ex is t  because  I  have never  taken you  

and i f  I  had gone  there  on  my pe rsona l  account ,  i t  has  go t  

no th ing  to  do  w i th  you,  so  p lease p rov ide  whatever  

in fo rmat ion  you a re  requ i red  to  do  so .   And he then sa id   -  

he  sought  assurance f rom me i f  tha t  was rea l l y  what  I  

wanted h im to  do  and I  sa id  yes,  p lease proceed.   He sa id  

l i s ten ,  they are  look ing  fo r  log  books,  they are  look ing  fo r  

the  in fo rmat ion  f rom h is  ce l l  phone ,  they are  look ing  fo r  20 

in fo rmat ion  f rom,  you know,  car  t rack ing  sys tem and aga in  

I  sa id ,  w i tness 3 ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  tha t  in fo rmat ion  ex is t s ,  

p lease prov ide  i t  to  the  Commiss ion  o r  to  Transnet  

because you are  under  an  ob l iga t ion  to  do  so  and i f  i t  i s  

tha t  there  are  i ssues tha t  emana te  there  f rom for  me,  I  



12 MARCH 2021 – DAY 360 
 

Page 32 of 145 
 

have the  ob l iga t ion  to  dea l  w i th  tha t ,  no t  you.   So tha t  was  

the  contex t  beh ind  me a lso  be ing  perp lexed by  the  a f f idav i t  

tha t  I  then was p rov ided w i th  f rom the  Commiss ion  in  tha t  

the  d iscuss ion  tha t  –  the  te lephon ic  d iscuss ion  tha t  I  had 

w i th  w i tness 3  v is -à-v is  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  was then prov ided  

was comple te l y  –  how can I  say ,  comple te ly  d i f fe ren t ,  so  –  

bu t  tha t  i s  the  contex t  beh ind  wh ich  I  v iewed the  w i tness 3  

a f f idav i t .  

 In  add i t ion  to  t ha t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  the  reason why I  

be l ieve  tha t  w i tness 3 ’s  a f f idav i t  and tes t imony is  a  10 

comple te  fabr i ca t ion ,  there  are  no  ob jec t i ve  fac t s  tha t  he  

ac tua l l y  re l ies  on  to  be  ab le  to  make the  a l legat ions he  

does.    

 Conven ien t ly ,  the re  are  no  log  books,  when patent ly  

f rom wi tness 1 ’s  tes t imony there  was a  requ i rement  to  

main ta in  log  books.   Mr  Cha i r ,  log  books cannot  be  

d ismissed as  a  mere  p iece o f  paper .   Mr  –  I  am sor ry ,  

w i tness 3 ,  d id  no t  repor t  to  me wi th in  the  Transnet  

s t ruc ture ,  he  repor ted  in to  the  genera l  manager  o f  Group  

Secur i t y .   So these log  books and t ime sheets  and a l l  o f  20 

these admin is t ra t i ve  p ieces o f  paper  wou ld  have been 

requ i red  fo r  w i tness 3  to  jus t i f y  any c la ims o f  ove r t ime,  any 

c la ims o f  work ing  over  the  weekend,  any issues  re la t ing  to  

inc idents  tha t  may have happened w i th  the  o f f i c ia l  

Transnet  veh ic le ,  so  i t  i s  very  cur ious fo r  me to  unders tand  
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tha t  these documents  ac tua l l y  do  no t  ex is t  because they 

had to  ex is t .   Transnet  was sub jec t  to  in te rna l  and ex te rna l  

aud i t  p rocesses ,  these documents  must  have been 

rev iewed,  they must  have been  f i led  somewhere .   In  

compar ison,  w i tness 1  was very  d i l igent  in  keep ing  th is  

document .   So tha t  i s  re la t ing  to  the  log  books.  

 Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  one occas ion  tha t  he  

desc r ibes,  he  desc r ibes an  occas ion  where  I  was  

summoned to  the  Gupta  res idence ,  o r  he  a l leges tha t  I  was  

summoned to  the  Gupta  res idence,  v ia  a  te lephone ca l l  10 

tha t  I  rece ived.   Accord ing  to  h im ,  I  v is i t  the  res idence,  I  

am there  fo r  about  an  hour  o r  so ,  I  th ink ,  accord ing  to  h is  

a f f idav i t ,  I  come out  and I  am i ra te  and I  use  cer ta in  

vu lgar i t ies  and he then proceeds  to  d r ive  me home  But  

cur ious ly  Saxonwold  to  my home is  p robab ly  less  than 10 

k i lomet res  and in  be ing  in  th is  i ra te  s ta te  he  then says I  

fe l l  as leep in  th is  space o f  10  k i lomet res .   That  does not  –  

i t  i s  inconce ivab le  tha t  I  wou ld  fa l l  as leep in  an  i ra te  s ta te  

in  a  space o f  less  than 10 k i lomet res .  

 So,  Mr  Cha i r,  those are  aspects  o f  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  20 

was issue fo r  me .   In  add i t ion  to  the  actua l  s tudy ing  o f  the  

a f f idav i t  i t se l f ,  we had occas ion  to  v iew the  cross-

examinat ion  o f  w i tness 3 ,  wh ich  was led ,  I  th ink ,  on  

Monday –  I  may be incor rec t  in  the  day.   But  aga in ,  under  

c ross-examinat ion ,  Mr  Cha i r,  w i t ness 3  d id  no t  rea l l y  –  
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we l l ,  d id  no t  per fo rm we l l  in  tha t  h is  ev idence,  I  th ink  in  my  

v iew,  was comple te ly  d ispe l led .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Now,  Mr  S ingh,  you f i led  four  a f f idav i t s  

in  th is  Commiss ion  wh ich  the  Cha i rperson has admi t ted 

and we have ano ther  one wh ich  is  in  the  process o f  be ing  

processed and w i l l  be  admi t ted .   Can you po in t  ou t  to  me 

where  do  you dea l  in  the  ser ies  o f  a f f idav i t s  w i th  the  

ev idence o f  w i tness 3?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  we dea l  w i th  the  ev idence o f  

w i tness 3  in  the  la tes t  a f f idav i t  tha t  we have commiss ioned  10 

th is  morn ing .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Th is  morn ing?  So is  tha t  then the  f i rs t  

t ime tha t  you have dea l t  w i th  the  ev idence o f  w i tness 3?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Why d id  i t  take  so  long?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  ment ioned or ig ina l l y,  we were  

no t  p rov ided w i th  the  a f f idav i t  o f  w i tness 3  by  the  

Commiss ion  pr io r  to  th is  tes t imony.   Subsequent  to  tha t  we 

d id  have access to  the  a f f idav i t  a t  the  Commiss ion .   Upon 

ana lys is  o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  my lega l  team and myse l f  had 20 

engaged w i th  the  Commiss ion  on  a  number  o f  occas ions 

t ry ing  to  ob ta in  t he  a f f idav i t  tha t  was ac tua l l y  adm i t ted  in to  

ev idence on the  day tha t  w i tness 3  ac tua l l y  t es t i f ied  

because the  a f f idav i t  tha t  was prov ided to  us  was ac tua l l y  

deposed to  post  a  da te  on  wh ich  w i tness 3  tes t i f ied .  



12 MARCH 2021 – DAY 360 
 

Page 35 of 145 
 

 We a lso  had concern  in  tha t  the  tes t imony tha t  –  o r  

the  t ransc r ip ts  and the  tes t imony  tha t  he  had led  was in  

some ins tances incons is ten t  w i th  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  we had  

been prov ided w i th  so  we were  t ry ing  to  ascer ta in  wh ich  

vers ion  o f  the  t ru th  was ac tua l l y  the  t ru th ,  was  i t  the  

a f f idav i t  tha t  was ente red in to  the  records  o f  the 

Commiss ion ,  was  i t  h is  t ransc r ip t s  o r  was i t  the  a f f idav i t  

tha t  we were  ac tua l l y  p rov ided w i th  post  the  tes t imony o f  

w i tness 3?  

And,  Mr  Cha i r,  jus t  fo r  the  record ,  we s t i l l  have not  10 

been prov ided w i th  the  requested document  o r  an  

exp lanat ion  as  to  why th is  was the  case but  nonethe less ,  

no tw i ths tand ing  tha t ,  we have p rov ided the  response to  the  

Commiss ion  in  ou r  very  las t  a f f idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH:    And jus t  to  conf i rm,  you were  asked to  

respond to  the  ev idence o f  w i tness 3  in  a  Regu la t ion  10 .6  

no t ice  da ted the  12  November  2020.   Would  you  conf i rm  

tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do  so .  

ADV MYBURGH:    And you d id  so  th is  morn ing?  20 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t .   Now jus t  so  we unders tand th is ,  

Mr  S ingh …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh,  the  issue o f  

documents  tha t  he  says have not  been prov ided to  them,  
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do  you know anyth ing  about  tha t ,  bu t  he  says in  re la t ion  to  

w i tness 3  the re  are  s t i l l  some documents  tha t  the  

Commiss ion  has no t  p rov ided to  h im.  

ADV MYBURGH:    I  th ink  tha t  the  issue o f  w i tness 3  –  I  am 

not  su re  i f  tha t  i s  what  Mr  S ingh is  say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH:    That  he  s t i l l  does not  have the  

documents .   Mr  S ingh?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   Mr  S ingh,  d id  I  m isunders tand you?   

I  though you sa id  in  re la t ion  to  w i tness 3  there  are  s t i l l  10 

some documents  tha t  you have not  been prov ided  w i th  by  

the  Commiss ion .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR SINGH:    We s t i l l  awa i t  the  a f f idav i t  o f  w i tness  3  tha t  

was admi t ted  in to  the  records  o f  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The one tha t  you say –  or  tha t  was 

admi t ted  on  the  da te  he  tes t i f ied?  

MR SINGH:    He tes t i f ied .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR SINGH:    Because the  a f f idav i t  tha t  we were  p rov ided  

w i th  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was a f te r.  

MR SINGH:    Was  dated a f te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  



12 MARCH 2021 – DAY 360 
 

Page 37 of 145 
 

MR SINGH:    The date  on  wh ich  he  ac tua l l y  p rov ided  

ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes and you have been wa i t ing  fo r  tha t  

fo r  qu i te  some t ime?  

MR SINGH:    Indeed so .  

ADV MYBURGH:    As  I  unders tand  i t ,  tha t  was sub jec t  to  a  

mov ing  tha t  you made,  Cha i rpe rson,  in  re la t ion  to  fu r ther  

redact ing  and the  l i ke .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  le t  –  we l l ,  somet imes what  I  know 

and what  the  lega l  team knows and what  the  invest iga t ion  10 

team knows a re  d i f fe ren t  th ings because I  am the  las t  one  

to  know cer ta in  t h ings because o f  the  way the  Commiss ion  

works .   The invest iga tors  w i l l  have in fo rmat ion ,  then tha t  

in fo rmat ion  w i l l  go  the  lega l  team,  th ings w i l l  come to  me 

on ly  when they a re  r ipe  fo r  tha t  bu t  as  fa r  as  I  know,  the re  

ought  to  be  on ly  one a f f idav i t  re la t ing  to  each one o f  the  

th ree  w i tnesses except  fo r  any supp lementary  a f f idav i t  that  

may have been p rov ided by  anyone to  them but  the  ru l ing  

o f  course  was to  the  e f fec t  tha t  the i r  a f f idav i t s  shou ld  be  

redacted but  I  –  i f  i t  i s  the  same – i f  i t  i s  a  redacted 20 

a f f idav i t  o f  the  p rev ious a f f idav i t  then there  shou ld  no t  be  a  

prob lem and,  in  any event ,  somebody shou ld  be  ab le  to  

exp la in  to  Mr  S ingh ’s  team,  lega l  team,  i f  the  pos i t ion  is  

s imp ly  tha t  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  was g iven to  h im had  to  be 

redone.   I t  was  s t i l l  the  –  i t  was the  prev ious one but  
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maybe had to  be  redone and deposed to  a f resh a f te r  –  fo r  

purposes o f  redact ion .   Mr  Pre tor ius  shou ld  know 

someth ing  about  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes,  I  have a  ru l ing  tha t  dea ls  w i th  tha t .   

Perhaps I  can share  tha t  w i th  my learned f r iend du r ing  the  

break but  to  answer  your  quest ion  d i rec t l y,  Cha i rperson,  i f  

I  cou ld  ask  you perhaps to  tu rn  to  bund le  5B,  to  page 414,  

there  you w i l l  see  a t  paragraph  1 .17  tha t  Mr  S ingh was 

asked to  respond to  w i tness 3 ’s  a f f idav i t  da ted  the  14  

September.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    That  a f f idav i t  was prov ided and tha t  i s  

the  a f f idav i t  tha t  f inds  i t s  way in to  bund le  BB14(b )  tha t  I  

am quest ion ing  h im about  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH:    I f  there  i s  any o ther  i ssues in  re la t ion  to  

tha t  we w i l l  so r t  tha t  ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  shou ld  –  

can be so r ted  ou t ,  there  may be jus t  some I  

m isunders tand ing  and maybe your  jun io r  m ight ,  wh i le  you 20 

are  busy,  t ry  and get  whatever  c la r i f i ca t ion  is  necessary  

inc lud ing  speak ing  to  the  ev idence leader  a t  the  t ime,  Mr  

Pre tor ius ,  and then shar ing  in fo rmat ion  w i th  Mr  S ingh ’s  

lega l  team.   There  may be jus t  some I  m isunders tand ing .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Cou ld  I  p lease,  Mr  S ingh,  jus t  take  you 
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back to  the  ev idence tha t  you gave?  Do I  unders tand you  

to  have sa id  tha t  w i tness 3  conveyed to  you tha t  he  was 

be ing  p laced under  p ressure  by  Transnet  and the  

Commiss ion  to  p rov ide  an  a f f idav i t ?    

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  my reco l lec t ion  o f  the  conversa t ion  

was as  Mr  Myburgh has out l ined.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And do I  unders tand your  ev idence then  

to  say or  leas t  what  you are  in fe r r ing  is  tha t  the  product  o f  

th is  o r  th is  a f f idav i t ,  wh ich  you say is  fa lse ,  i s  the  product  

o f  tha t  p ressure?   I s  tha t  essent ia l l y  what  you are  te l l ing  10 

us?  I s  tha t  how wou ld  desc r ibe  the  fa l s i t y,  on  your  

vers ion ,  o f  th is  a f f idav i t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  wou ld  be  one o f  the  reasons,  

as  I  have tes t i f ied ,  the  conversa t ion  and the  conc lus ion  

tha t  w i tness 3  and I  had regard ing  the  d iscuss ion  was tha t  

we were  o f  one mind tha t  he  needed to  comply  and there  

wou ld  be  no issues because the  fac tua l  na ture  o f  the  

a l legat ions d id  no t  ex i s t  and tha t  was the  conc lus ion  o f  the  

conversa t ion ,  i s  he  never  took me to  the  res idence.   So 

…[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  your  suggest ion  tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

in  h is  a f f idav i t  w i tness 3  ta lks  about  tak ing  you  to  the 

Gupta  res idence,  one,  tha t  i s  fa lse  and two,  i t  must  be  tha t  

he  has g iven tha t  fa lse  ev idence because o f  the  pressure  

tha t  he  says was brought  to  bear  upon h im by Transnet  
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peop le  and Commiss ion  peop le?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH:    So I  assume you must  then dea l  w i th  

tha t  i ssue o f  p ressure  in  the  a f f idav i t  you f i led  th is  morn ing  

when dea l ing  w i th  w i tness 3?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  we do not  go  in to  the  de ta i l  in  the 

a f f idav i t  re la t ing  to  the  pressure ,  i t  was a  d iscuss ion  tha t  

counse l  and I  had and we have  dec ided to  p rov ide  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  we have prov ided  in  the  a f f idav i t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes bu t  the  nub o f  you r  case is  the  

pressure  wh ich  you do not  dea l  then w i th  the  nub  o f  you r  

case in  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  reason ing  beh ind  

the  exc lus ion  f rom the  a f f idav i t  i s  as  fo l lows.   Counse l  had  

requested tha t  I  p rov ide  the  de ta i l s  o f  the  a l leged  

te lephone ca l l .   I  am ter r ib le  w i th  da tes  so  I  do  no t  ac tua l l y  

remember  the  da tes  and the  t imes o f  these th ings and  

g iven the  fac t  tha t  we wanted to  be  comple te ly  and u t te r ly  

fac tua l  we though t  i t  bes t  be  dea l t  w i th  in  th is  fo rum.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    So  in  your  a f f idav i t  do  you ment ion  

anyth ing  about  the  te lephone ca l l  tha t  you had w i th  w i tness 

3?  

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And you have sa id  you ment ion  no th ing  
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about  the  pressure .  

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:    So  then pe rhaps I  can ask  you  why –  

why d id  you never  make app l i ca t ion  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  do not  ment ion  the  te lephone ca l l  

tha t  you had w i th  w i tness 3  and  you do not  men t ion  the  

pressure  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  may I  know what  i s  –  whether  in  

your  a f f idav i t  you say what  reason w i tness 3  had to  10 

e f fec t i ve l y  fa lse l y  imp l ica te  you  in  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  

res idence?  

MR SINGH:    We do dea l  w i th  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You dea l  w i th  i t ,  ja ,  bu t  i t  i s  d i f fe ren t  

f rom pressure  and the  te lephone ca l l  conversa t ion .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  we do no t  a l lude to  the  te lephone 

conversa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    The  pressure  was a  d iscuss ion  tha t  emanated  

f rom the  te lephone d iscuss ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    So  as  a  resu l t  bo th  o f  those mat te rs  do  no t  

f ind  i t s  way in to  the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH:    Mr  Cha i rpe rson,  I  do  no t  know i f  you do 
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in tend to  take  a  tea  ad jou rnment  th is  morn ing  bu t  i t  does 

s t r i ke  tha t  pe rhaps we need to  pu t  th is  a f f idav i t  be fore  you  

even in fo rmal ly,  i t  w i l l  then be  fo rmal ly  in t roduced a t  

luncht ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Bu t  i t  i s  on ly  a  page and a  ha l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  tha t  is  f ine .   I  was undec ided  

about  tak ing  the  tea  ad journment  because we had tha t  

t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  f ine  w i th  everybody i f  we sk ip  the  

tea  ad journment?   Mr  S ingh,  i s  tha t  f ine  w i th  you? 

MR SINGH:    No prob lem wi th  me,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Counse l?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    No prob lem,  Cha i r,  we can go  

ahead.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Myburgh …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH:    So  i f  I  cou ld  perhaps ask  my learned  

f r iend i f  she  has go t  anothe r  copy  o f  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  we 

cou ld  then hand up to  you but  on  the  bas is  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  20 

fo rmal ly  in t roduced.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  due course .  

ADV MYBURGH:    A f te r  lunch.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  i f  I  am jus t  g iven 
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an  oppor tun i ty  I  w i l l  see  i f  I  can  f ind… 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  ja .    A re  we go ing  to  

cont inue in  the  meant ime or  we w i l l  wa i t  fo r  –  oh ,  there  i t  

i s .   Reg is t ra r  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  I  have got  a  

copy fo r  you rse l f  and I  have got  a  copy fo r  the  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Cha i rperson,  sub jec t  to  your  d i rec t ion ,  

cou ld  we s imp ly  re fer  to  th is  as  fo r  p resent  purposes Mr  

S ingh ’s  a f f idav i t ,  i t  was deposed to  on  the  12  March 2021,  10 

wh ich  w i l l  be  admi t ted  in to  ev idence I  wou ld  imag ine  a f te r  

lunch.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    I  tend to  re fer  h im on ly  p resent ly  to  

parag raphs 143 to  152,  the  las t  two pages o f  the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  we can re fer  to  i t  as  the  12  March  

2021 a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  S ingh,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  thank you.   Mr  S ingh,  

you have a  copy?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r,  I  do .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    Be fore  we get  to  th is  a f f idav i t  o f  yours ,  

can I  ask  you –  I  mean,  in  the  l igh t  o f  th is  te lephon ic  

d iscuss ion  tha t  you say you had w i th  w i tness 3  and the  

assumpt ion  tha t  p ressure  was brought  to  bear  on  h im,  why  

d id  you not  exe rc ise  your  r i gh t  to  c ross-examine w i tness 3?  
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MR SINGH:    S i r,  aga in ,  the  d i scuss ions be tween the  lega l  

team and myse l f  regard ing  th is  ma t te r  o f  c ross-examinat ion  

was communica ted  to  the  Commiss ion  and aga in  emanated  

f rom the .  le t  us  ca l l  i t ,  I  m isunders tand ing ,  as  you  put  i t ,  

Mr  Cha i r,  re la t ing  to  the  vers ions  o f  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  we  

needed to  be  ab le  to  unders tand whethe r  we wou ld  need to  

c ross-examine or  no t  a t  tha t  s tage .  

ADV MYBURGH:    So  i f  we have regard  then to  your  

a f f idav i t  –  and you w i l l  bea r  w i th  me tha t  I  have not  s tud ied  

th is  so  perhaps I  am do ing  i t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime as  we go  10 

th rough.   So perhaps we cou ld  jus t  go  th rough each 

paragraph,  i t  i s  no t  very  long.   Now paragraph 143:  

“ I  w ish  to  b r ie f l y  comment  on  the  ev idence o f  

w i tness 3  and the  subsequent  da ted  a f f idav i t  by  

w i tness 3  prov ided to  my lega l  team. ”  

And then you say  –  you dea l  w i th  t h is  i ssue o f  the  a f f idav i t  

and the  l i ke  wh ich  you have a l ready addressed,  wh ich  we 

hope to  c la r i f y  w i th  your  lega l  representa t i ve  and you then  

say a t  145:  

“ I  thus  comment  on  the  a f f idav i t  so  prov ided and the  20 

ev idence here ina f te r. ”  

146:  

“ I  deny the  a l legat ion  conta ined in  h is  a f f idav i t  and 

the  ev idence he prov ided the  Commiss ion  regard ing  

my v i s i t s  to  the  Gupta  res idence in  Saxonwold  w i th  
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spec i f i c  re fe rence to  pa ragraphs  37 to  45 .   In  

add i t ion  to  the  a foresa id ,  I  deny tha t  a l legat ion  tha t  

he  took me to  the  Knox Vau l t  subsequent  to  v is i t s  t o  

the  Gupta  res idence,  paragraph 41 to  43 . ”  

147:  

“ I  fu r ther  deny the  fac t  tha t  I  co l lec ted  any money 

f rom the  Gupta  res idence as  a l leged by  w i tness 3 . ”  

148:  

“ I t  i s  inconce ivab le  tha t  I  wou ld  expose myse l f  to  

tak ing  cash f rom a  bag “ tha t  was s tacked w i th  R100  10 

and R200 notes ”  f rom h im to  buy lunch and thereby  

compromise  myse l f .   Regards the  bag rece ived a t  

the  Three R ive rs  Lodge,  I  w ish  to  s ta te  aga in  tha t  i t  

i s  inconce ivab le  to  suggest  tha t  I  wou ld  in  fu l l  v iew  

o f  a  la rge  cont ingency o f  Transne t  employees mee t  

these persons o f  As ian  descent  i n  the  conference  

room dur ing  work ing  hours  thus aga in  compromis ing  

my in tegr i t y  and expose myse l f  in  such a  manner.   

The Commiss ion  shou ld  no te  tha t  these breakaway  

sess ions was a t tended by  a  l a rge  number  o f  20 

employees a t  any  g iven t ime and had f ree  access to  

the  conference room and pa rk ing . ”  

150:  

“There  is  no  con f i rmatory  a f f idav i t  a t tached to  h i s  

a f f idav i t  wh ich  can conf i rm the  a l legat ions made by  
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w i tness 3  such as  Mole fe ’s  d r iver. ”  

151:  

“There  was noth ing  s in is te r  i n  my v i s i t  to  Sahara  

Computers  as  I  d id  no t  a t tend  any meet ings as  

a l leged by  w i tness 3 . ”  

And then you say  a t  152:  

“Last ly  I  w i sh  to  s ta te  tha t  w i tness 3 ’s  per fo rmance 

under  c ross-examinat ion  p roved  tha t  he  is  no t  a  

re l iab le  w i tness and the  Commiss ion  cannot  re l y  on  

h is  ev idence. ”  10 

That  i s  your  response,  i s  i t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  looks  l i ke  you may have been 

mis taken,  Mr  S ingh,  in  say ing  tha t  in  the  a f f idav i t  you do  

g ive  a  reason why w i tness 3  wou ld  fa lse ly  imp l ica te  you in  

these v is i t s .   Of  course  I  am on ly  look ing  a t  i t  as  Mr  

Myburgh is  read ing ,  I  do  no t  know i f  I  have  missed 

anyth ing .   Other  than deny ing  tha t  what  he  has sa id  i s  

t rue ,  I  do  no t  seem to  have p i cked up any spec i f i c  reason 

tha t  you may be advanc ing  why he wou ld  fabr ica te  a l l  20 

these s tor i es .  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  may have I  m isunders tood  

your  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Quest ion ,  yes.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  i f  tha t  was the  quest ion  then I  do  agree 
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w i th  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  a f f idav i t  does not  conta in  tha t  [ inaud ib le  

–  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  tha t  is  a l r igh t .   Thank you,  Mr  

Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH:    Thank you.   Wel l ,  le t  go  then  to  the 

a f f idav i t  o f  w i tness 3  and can I  take  you to  page  127 o f  

bund le  BB14(d) .   I  want  to  p ick  up ,  Mr  S ingh,  a t  paragraph  

29,  under  the  head ing  CPO serv i ces  to  Ano j  S ingh.   A re 10 

you there?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  am.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Wi tness 3  says:  

“Dur ing  January  2014 I  was a  secur i t y  manager  to  

p rov ide  secur i t y  serv i ces  a t  Transnet  Off i ces  in  the  

Car l ton  Cent re . ”  

Would  you agree w i th  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  as  I  tes t i f ied  w i tness 3  d id  no t  

ac tua l l y  repor t  to  me d i rec t l y.    He  repor ted  to  the  Genera l  

Manager,  Group  Secur i t y  and wou ld  have then been 20 

dep loyed to  me,  f rom the  Secur i t y  Depar tment ,  so  the  da te  

on  wh ich  he  ac tua l l y  wou ld  have s tar ted  a t  Transnet  I  

wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  conf i rm.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 30:  

“A f te r  some t ime,  I  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom wi tness 1 ,  
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we in fo rmed me tha t  To lka  had ass igned me to  the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  Group Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i ce r,  the  

GCFO to  per fo rm dr ive r  and CPO dut ies  fo r  Ano j  

S ingh,  I  occup ied  th is  pos i t ion  dur ing  Ju ly  2014”  

You conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  con f i rm tha t  w i tness 3  d id  per fo rm 

dr iver  and CPO serv i ces  fo r  me,  I  do  however,  d ispute  the  

da te  o f  Ju l y  2014.   My reco l lec t i on  wou ld  have been tha t  

tha t  da te  wou ld  have been c loser  to  a round March 2014.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    2014?  10 

MR SINGH:    2014,  the  reason there fore ,  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  I  

ment ioned is  tha t  there  was a  par t i cu la r  inc ident  tha t  led  to  

CPO serv i ces  be ing  prov ided to  myse l f ,  and i t  was the  

inc ident  re la ted  to  ac tua l l y  no t  to  me i t  ac tua l l y  re la ted  to  

Mr  Bra in  Mole fe  a t  the  t ime,  and  he was t rave l l ing  home 

f rom a  meet ing  wh ich  was re la t i ve l y  la te  in  the  even ing ,  

and he  had occas ion  to  t rave l  on  the  N1 and he was  

pass ing  under  a  br idge,  and the re  was a  s tone tha t  was  

then th rown onto  the  ca r  f rom the  br idge above.   

And th is  obv ious ly  perp lexed Mr  Mole fe  and the  20 

next  morn ing ,  he  ca l led  me and he  sa id ,  l i s ten  th is  was the  

inc ident  tha t  happened,  and he does not  know why th is  

happened.   But  a t  the  end o f  the  day,  he  was concerned fo r  

h is  and our  secur i t y,  and we were  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime 

negot ia t ing  the  loca l  cont rac ts .   
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And tha t  i s  why i t  ac tua l l y  s t i cks  in  my mind,  and 

tha t  was the  reason why w i tness  3  was then a l loca ted  to  

me fo r  secur i t y  reasons a t  tha t  t ime,  wh ich  fo l lowed th is  

inc ident  tha t  occu r red  to  Mr  Mole fe .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you  have i t  as  h im hav ing  s ta r ted  

to  p rov ide  those serv i ces  in  about  March o f  2014? 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And cont inued up unt i l  when  Mr  

S ingh?  

MR SINGH:    He wou ld  have cont inued unt i l  I  –  we l l  10 

ac tua l l y  I  th ink  he  cont inued a  month  in to  my secondment  

to  Eskom,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  takes us  in to?  

MR SINGH:    Le t  us  say,  end o f  August  2015,  g ive  o r  take .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then a t  parag raph 31 w i tness 3 

says:  

“On a  normal  work ing  day,  I  used  to  p ick  S ingh up  

a t  h is  home in  the  morn ing  a t  a round 6 :30  in  

Wendywood and  f rom the i r  d r i v ing  to  the  Car l ton  

Cent re  a f te r  work  I  wou ld  drop h im o f f  a t  h is  home 20 

aga in . ”  

You conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  paragraph 32:  

“Dur ing  the  course  o f  the  day I  wou ld  d r ive  h im to  
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meet ings or  to  wh ichever  dest ina t ion  he  wou ld  

ins t ruc t  me to ,  S ingh ’s  persona l  ass is tan t  wou ld  

usua l l y  p rov ide  me wi th  h is  mee t ing  schedu le  fo r  

the  fo l low ing week on a  Fr iday a f te rnoon. ”  

You conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  conf i rm tha t  he  d id  dr ive  me 

to  meet ings,  I  am not  too  su re  about  the  ar rangements  he  

had w i th  my persona l  ass is tan t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 33:  

“ I t  somet imes happened tha t  h i s  meet ings las ted  10 

unt i l  la te  in  the  even ing ,  wh ich  caused me to  ar r i ve  

home a f te r  22h00  or  even la te r. ”  

Comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  on  occas ions i f  we had c l ien t  

d inners  or  the  l i ke  yes,  i t  wou ld  occur.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 34:  

“Dur ing  the  per iod  to  wh ich  I  was ass igned as  CPO 

for  S ingh,  I  can reca l l  tha t  I  used the  fo l low ing two  

Transnet  veh ic les  to  t ranspor t  h im on o f f i c ia l  du t ies  

namely  a  wh i te  Mercedes Benz C220. ”  20 

He g i ves the  reg i s t ra t ion  number.  

“And second ly  a  wh i te  Mercedes Benz E350. ”  

And he g ives  the  reg i s t ra t ion  number,  do  you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 35 he says:  
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“ I  kep t  logbooks o f  t r ips  under taken w i th  the  

a forement ioned two veh ic les ,  used logbooks were  

g iven to  w i tness 1  fo r  sa fekeep ing . ”  

You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r  as  I  ment ioned,  I  th ink  the  

issue o f  the  logbooks is  ac tua l l y  qu i te  an  impor tan t  one,  

espec ia l l y  g iven the  contex t  tha t  he  ra i ses  in  a t  paragraph 

33,  g iven the  fac t  tha t  he  admi ts  tha t  he  used to  work  

over t ime.   And the  fac t  tha t  these logbooks do not  ex is t ,  

c rea tes  a  p rob lem for  us  to  be  ab le  to  ver i f y  h is  ve rs ion  o f  10 

the  a l legat ions.   

In  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  f ind  i t  s t range tha t  

w i tness 3  w i l l  be  very  d i l igent  to  keep the  log  books  tha t  he  

re fers  to ,  bu t  do  no t  o r  was not  ab le  to  save tha t  log  books 

tha t  were  p rov ided to  h im by w i tness 3  tha t  re la te  to  

myse l f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then he says a  35 .1 :  

“ I  have subsequent ly  a t tempted to  ob ta in  the  

logbooks fo r  these veh ic les  in  o rder  to  substant ia te  

the  t r ips  under taken fo r  S ingh but  was in fo rmed tha t  20 

the  logbooks cou ld  no t  be  loca ted. ”  

You a l ready addressed tha t .  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  we have addressed tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “ I n  ins tances –  a t  pa ragraph 36,  

S ingh  



12 MARCH 2021 – DAY 360 
 

Page 52 of 145 
 

wou ld  dr i ve  to  the  o f f i ce  w i th  h i s  p r iva te  veh ic le ,  a  

b lue  BMW M3 on Monday morn ings and on Fr iday  

a f te rnoons,  he  wou ld  t rave l  home wi th  h is  veh ic le .  

The veh ic le  wou ld  be  parked in  the  basement  o f  the  

Car l ton  Cent re  du r ing  the  week. ”  

You conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  con f i rm tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “Now S ingh ’s  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta   

res idence and Knox Vau l t . ”  

What  do  you know about  Knox Vau l t ,  what  i s  i t?  10 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  i t  i s  an  organ isa t ion  or  bus iness or  

company tha t  p rov ides vau l t  se rv i ces .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i f  we th ink ing  o f  the  same th ing  

I  see i t  there  oppos i te  the  K i l la rney Mal l  a t  the  o ld  

Amer i can embassy I  th ink  i t  i s .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 37:  

“Dur ing  the  per iod  o f  per fo rm ing  CPO dut ies  fo r  

S ingh,  I  t ranspor ted  h im to  the  Gupta  res idence in  

Saxonwold  Dr i ve  in  Johannesburg  on  more  than 10  20 

occas ions.   None o f  these mee t ings were  pr io r  

schedu led  or  recorded in  h i s  d ia ry. ”  

Now tha t  you deny.  

MR SINGH:    I  deny i t ,  I  do  deny tha t ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  do I  unders tand your  ev idence 
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cor rec t l y  you say w i tness 3  never  t ook you to  Saxonwold?  

MR SINGH:    No,  he  d id  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Those  ten  odd occas ions o r  

approx imate  ten  odd occas ions tha t  you went  there ,  wou ld  

my unders tand ing  be cor rec t  you a t tend cu l tu ra l  and  

re l ig ious funct ions you wou ld  have  dr iven in  your  own car?   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  see  tha t  I  th ink  in  a  paragraph  

tha t  Mr  Myburgh is  s t i l l  go ing  to  come to  i f  I  am not  wrong,  

tha t  w i tness 3  when he es t imates  how many t imes  he took  10 

you to  the  Gupta  res idence and he a lso  re fers  to  ten .   He 

says,  he  th inks  he  must  –  bu t  he  says more  than ten  t imes,  

you sa id  he  must  have gone there  fo r  cu l tu ra l / re l ig ious 

funct ion  max imum ten  t imes,  i t  i s  jus t  in te res t ing  tha t  you  

used ten  and he uses ten .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r  i f  you  had to  l ook  a t  the  de ta i l  

o f  w i tness 3  t ranscr ip t s ,  he  ac tua l l y  vac i l la tes  be tween 

f i ve ,  ten ,  seven,  12 ,  so  I  wou ld  no t  p lace  any re l iance on 

the  ten .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  see he  uses s ix  o r  seven in  20 

re la t ion  to  the  v is i t s  to  the  Knox  Vau l t  bu t  maybe some 

where  he  a lso  uses another  number  o ther  than more  than  

ten  in  re la t ion  to  the  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  res idence.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  somewhere .  
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MR SINGH:    In  my assessment ,  I  am a l so  tak ing  a lso  f rom 

h is  t ranscr ip ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    And the  responses tha t  h is  p rov ided in  tha t  in  

tha t  tes t imony i t se l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  o f  cou rse  you a lso  vac i l la te  on  

the  number  o f  t imes you went  to  the  Gupta  res idence to  

a t tend -  and I  do  no t  mean tha t  in  a  pe jo ra t i ve  way,  bu t  you 

say f i ve ,  ten ,  ten  maybe more  maybe less .  10 

MR SINGH:    Wel l  i t  i s  over  a  per iod  o f  t ime,  so  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  abso lu te ly,  a t  paragraph  38:  

“Upon ar r i va l  a t  the  Gupta  res idence I  parked the  

veh ic le  i n  the  park ing  area ins ide  the  p remises and  

I  wou ld  wa i t  in  the  veh ic le  fo r  h im to  re turn .  The  

meet ings usua l l y  d id  no t  las t  longer  than 20 to  30  

minutes . ”  

I  take  i t  tha t  a l l  o f  th is  i s  then den ied?  

MR SINGH:    I  deny those.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    39 :  20 

“A f te r  each o f  the  meet ings,  S ingh wou ld  usua l l y  

appear  f rom the  res idence w i th  a  spor t s  bag,  wh ich  

appear  to  be  fu l l .  I  suspected  tha t  the  bags  

conta ined money,  S ingh wou ld  knock on  the  boot  o f  

the  veh ic le  and  I  wou ld  open i t  f rom the  i ns ide ,  he  
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wou ld  then put  the  bag in  the  boot . ”  

Any comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  deny the  a l legat ions conta ined in  

parag raph 39 where  i t  re la tes  to  the  bag,  w i tness 3  fa i l s  to  

desc r ibe  the  bags  or  the  co lour  o f  the  bags or  even prov ide  

any de ta i l s  re la t ing  the  bag.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  Mr  S ingh how does tha t  he lp  

you,  you say i t  d id  no t  happen a t  a l l .  

MR SINGH:    No,  no  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing ,  tha t  is  why I  

am say ing  i t  d id  no t  happen because i t  fa i l s  to  p rov ide  any 10 

ev idence and to  suggest  why i t  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wou ld  a  be t te r  descr ip t ion  o f  the 

bag change your  de fence?  

MR SINGH:    Not  i t  w i l l  no t  bu t  i t  wou ld  a t  leas t  add some 

cred ib i l i t y  in  te rms o f  what  he  was t ry ing  to  ach ieve.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  a t  paragraph 40:  

“My susp ic ion  tha t  the  bags tha t  S ingh co l lec ted  

f rom the  Gupta  res idence conta ined money was  

conf i rmed when on one occas ion  I  opened the  bag ,  

wh ich  he  had he had ear l ie r  co l lec ted  f rom the  20 

Gupta  res idence  ins ide  the  boot  o f  our  veh ic le  t o  

g ive  me some money to  buy lunch.   He opened the  

bag,  when he opened the  bag,  I  cou ld  c lear ly  see  

tha t  the  bag was s tacked w i th  100 and 200 notes . ”  

I  th ink  th is  i s  someth ing  you have dea l t  w i th  in  your  
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a f f idav i t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  and fo r  the  record ,  I  a lso  deny the  

contents  o f  parag raph 40.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    40?  

MR SINGH:    Yes ,  the  one tha t  you jus t  read and aga in ,  Mr  

Cha i r  i f  on  w i tness 3 ’s  ve rs ion ,  I  was p rov id ing  money fo r  

h im to  buy lunch ,  wh ich  I  occas iona l l y  d id  and i t  was not  

on ly  fo r  h im,  i t  was fo r  the  o f f i ce  s ta f f .   There  was no need  

fo r  me to  go  and access money f rom th is  bag.  

I  had access to  money f rom my wa l le t ,  I  cou ld  have 10 

gone to  the  ATM,  I  cou ld  had  anothe r,  a  number  o f  

a l te rna t ives  to  be  ab le  to  do  tha t .   Why wou ld  I  access 

money f rom an a l leged bag in  h is  p resence? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  us  assume l i ke  a l l  o f  us ,  we l l ,  

maybe not  a l l  o f  us  bu t  some o f  us  the re  a re  occas ions  

when your  wa l le t  does not  have enough cash and you need  

to  pay fo r  someth ing  or  to  g ive  somebody a  cer ta in  amount  

and you look a t  your  wa l le t  and i t  has  go t  too  l i t t le  in  i t .  

I f  tha t  was the  case and you knew there  was a  bag 

in  the  boot  tha t  had cash.   Why wou ld  you have to  d r ive  to  20 

an  ATM ins tead o f  us ing  the  cash tha t  i s  in  the  boot?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  aga in ,  i f  I  was mak ing  the  o f fe r  to  

h im,  as  he  suggests ,  and i t  was an o f fe r,  i t  was  not  an  

ob l iga t ion ,  I  wou ld  no t  o f fe r  i f  I  d id  no t  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  bu t  on  h is  vers ion ,  you had money in  
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the  boot ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    I  agree Mr  Cha i r  bu t  on  h is  vers ion  as  we l l  he  

suggested tha t  I  o f fe red  th is  money fo r  h im to  buy lunch.   

In  my case,  I  am say ing  there  was no ob l iga t ion  fo r  me to  

o f fe r  th is  lunch,  so  i f  I  d id  no t  have the  cash on me,  there  

was no need fo r  me to  do  i t  o r  access the  money in  the  

boot .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  the  cash is  in  the  boot  one wou ld  -  

assuming h is  vers ion  i s  cor rec t  fo r  purposes o f  th is  

a rgument .   I  do  no t  unders tand why you wou ld  no t  have  10 

sa id  oh  there  is  no t  enough money here  and then use the 

money in  the  boo t .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  w i th  a l l  due respect  I  th ink  the 

vers ion  is  no t  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no  i t  i s  one th ing  to  say the  vers ion  

is  no t  cor rec t  bu t  I  thought  you were  a t tack ing  i t  on  the  

bas is  tha t  th is  ve rs ion ,  you know,  has th is  f law I  wou ld  no t  

use  cash in  the  boot ,  I  wou ld  use cash in  my wa l le t ,  i f  I  d id  

no t  have enough  cash in  the  wa l le t  o r  enough cash then I  

wou ld  no t  o f fe r  the  lunch.   20 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r,  I  wou ld  no t  o f fe r  i t  i f  I  d id  

no t  have i t  in  my wa l le t ,  I  wou ld  no t  o f fe r  lunch.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   Now,  be fore  we get  

to  th is  i ssue o f  Knox Vau l t ’s .   D id  you have a  sa fe ty  
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depos i t  box a t  Knox Vau l t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  d id .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And how many d id  you have? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  exac t  number  I  do  no t  reca l l ,  

bu t  i t  w i l l  p robab ly  be  fou r,  maybe four  to  f i ve .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And how la rge  were  these  sa fe ty  

depos i t  boxes tha t  you had four  o f?   

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you went  p resumably  and can 

you es t imate  fo r  us ,  show us?  10 

MR SINGH:    There  were  vary ing  s izes,  there  were  one ’s  

tha t  were  probab ly  th is  b ig…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  wou ld  tha t  be  say 15  cent imet res  

by  40  cent imet res ,  60  cent imet res?  

MR SINGH:    P robab ly  I  mean,  t hey were  re la t i ve ly  th in ,  

th is  w ide .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    P lease,  can you speak c lose  to  the 

m ic?   

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  s i r  they  were  re la t i ve l y  th in .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t .   20 

MR SINGH:    And  they were  long.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then long,  and the  o the r  one?  

MR SINGH:    There  was a lso  a  one tha t  was re la t i ve l y  

long,  bu t  a lso  re la t i ve ly  deep.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  there  was a  b igger  one.   
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MR SINGH:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you say re la t i ve l y  long,  a re  we 

ta lk ing  90  cent imet res  a  meter?  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  th ink  the  length  o f  the  boxes were  the 

same is  jus t  the  depth  was b igger.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  how h igh  what  was the  depth  o f  

the  second box 30 cent imet res ,  40  cent imet res .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was i t  ha l f  a  me t re?  

MR SINGH:    No Cha i r,  i t  i s  p robab ly  30  cent imet res .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  30  cent imet res ,  i s  tha t  more  or  less 10 

about  the  length ,  what  i s  the  length…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    O f  a  ru le r.  

MR SINGH:    O f  a  ru le r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So you say the  he igh t  was about  30  

cent imet res?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And the  dep th?  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  when you say depth?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The he igh t  wou ld  be  the  depth .  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  a l l  o f  them were  a l l  the  same s ize ,  I  20 

th ink  a l l  o f  them were  the  same s i ze .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  wou ld  you es t imate  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    As  we sa id  i t  was probab ly…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    60?  

MR SINGH:    P robab ly  no t ,  i t  was probab ly  50.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    So 30 by  50 ,  somewhere  a long 

there . ,  so r ry  i f  need to  take  you back.   So tha t  was the  

sa fe ty  depos i t  box two,  the  f i rs t  one you sa id  was smal le r  

than tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  S i r,  I  am say ing  there  were  p robab ly  

four  to  f i ve  o f  them,  I  do  no t  know the  exact  number  o f  how 

many were  b ig  and how many were  smal l .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  I  do  reca l l  tha t  they were  va ry ing  s izes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  le t  us  go  -  a l r igh t ,  so  you had  10 

four  boxes o f  va ry ing  s i zes ,  you have descr ibed the  one  

s ize  to  us ,  30  by  50 ,  and d id  you have a l l  fou r  boxes a t  the  

same t ime?  

MR SINGH:    On occas ion ,  I  th ink  they p robab ly  wou ld  

have been there  a t  the  same t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And how much d id  you pay now to 

ren t  these fou r  boxes f rom Knox Vau l t  on  a  month ly  bas i s?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  reca l l  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  a re  they -  you  wou ld  

presumably  be  ab le  to  es t imate ,  i s  i t  expens ive  to  h i re  20 

these and espec ia l l y  four  o f  them? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  they  -  I  mean,  the  cost  i s  re la t i ve  

g iven the  fac t  tha t  the  na ture  o f  the  reason fo r  hav ing  the  

boxes is  secur i t y  o r  sa fe t y  and so  on ,  I  mean a t  the  end o f  

the  day in  te rms o f  quantum,  I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  they were  
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no t  more  than R2  500,00 a  year  o r  R2000,00 or  R3000,00 a 

year.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A year?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R2 500,00 not  a  month?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  Mr  S ingh…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    Each.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Each?  

MR SINGH:    H ’m 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Per  year?  

MR SINGH:    As  I  sa id  I  do  no t  reca l l  th is  Cha i rperson,  I  

am probab ly  es t imat ing  and probab ly  bad ly  so .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bur  you a re  go ing  to  come back and  

g ive  ev idence presumably  th is  i s  someth ing  tha t  you cou ld  

look  in to  fo r  us  and perhaps look a t  your  records ,  and then 

determine what  i t  i s  tha t  you pa id .   

I  mean,  I  p resume you conc lude a  cont rac t  w i th  an  

en t i t y  l i ke  Knox Vau l ts .   I t  i s  qu i te  a  se r ious th ing  to  h i re  

your  sa fe ty  depos i t  box presumably  there  is  a  lo t  o f  20 

pro toco l  and paperwork ,  i s  tha t  so? 

MR SINGH:    Yes i t  i s .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And fo r  how long d id  you then have  

these four  sa fe ty  depos i t  boxes a t  Knox Vau l t?  

MR SINGH:    I  am not  too  su re  exact ly  when they were  
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there  f rom,  bu t  in  I  wou ld  say 2016 or  ‘17 I  s topped us ing  

the  se rv i ces  o f  Knox Vau l t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  years  d id  you have these 

boxes?  

MR SINGH:    P robab ly  f rom 2013 I  wou ld  say.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Unt i l  2016,  d id  you say?  

MR SINGH:    2016/2017.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  and  what  i s  i t  tha t  you d id  

w i th  these boxes,  why d id  you need four  o f  them? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  they  were  bas i ca l l y  fo r  sa fe ty  and  10 

secur i t y  pu rposes we l l  in  South  A f r i ca ,  you rea l ly  requ i re  

sa fe ty  and secur i t y  a t  leas t ,  a t  any g iven po in t  in  t ime.   

They were  to  s to re  va luab les ,  jewe l le ry,  documents ,  

anyth ing  tha t  we thought  tha t  we need to  s to re  and tha t  i s  

i t  bas ica l l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And cash?  

MR SINGH:    There  was an occas ion  to  s to re  some cash.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    How much cash?  

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld  be  specu la t ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  what  was tha t  answer?   20 

MR SINGH:    I  sa id ,  I  wou ld  be  specu la t ing  i f  I  was to  

es t imate  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  wou ld  -  I  guess maybe one cou ld  

ask ,  what  k ind  o f  amount  do  you  reca l l  hav ing  depos i ted  

there  a t  some or  o ther  s tage?  
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MR SINGH:    I  wou ld  say tha t  I  th ink  i t  i s  p robab ly  in  the  

reg ion  o f  maybe a t  any g i ven po in t  in  t ime,  maybe a  100  

000.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  wou ld  be  the  b iggest  amount  

tha t  you even depos i ted  there  tha t  you can reca l l?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  th is  wou ld  have been an 

accumula t ion  ove r  a  per iod  o f  t ime,  so  i t  wou ld  have been 

re la t i ve ly  smal l  amounts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Smal l  amounts?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And the  R100 000,00 might  have been 

the  b iggest  o r  no t  -  you do not  know? 

MR SINGH:    I  rea l l y  do  no t  reca l l  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  there  cou ld  have been an amount  

h igher  than tha t  o r  lower?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  and the  per iod  when you  

kept  –  you had these boxes the re  wou ld  i t  have been f rom 

when to  when i f  you are  ab le  to  say?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  I  responded  to  Mr  Myburgh probab ly  20 

be tween 2013 ’ ish  to  2016/17 ’ ish .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no  I  may have missed tha t ,  okay  

thank you Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Mr  S ingh,  I  am not  

fami l ia r  w i th  th is  sor t  o f  th ing .   I  have a  sa fe  a t  home,  jus t  



12 MARCH 2021 – DAY 360 
 

Page 64 of 145 
 

exp la in  to  me what  i t  i s  tha t  you needed to  -  why d id  you 

need four  o f  these boxes?   What  i s  i t  tha t  you were  

keep ing  in  these four  boxes?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  the  four  boxes is  easy to  exp la in .  

There  was a  box fo r  each one o f  the  members  o f  the  fami ly  

in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  to  access the  requ i rements ,  

whenever  we needed someth ing  fo r  someone.   So i t  was 

jewe l le ry  fo r,  le t  us  say he  w i fe  then i t  was in  a  box,  

documents  was in  a  separa te  box and a l i ke .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And…[ in tervene]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Remember  to  speak c lose r  to  the  m ic .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Why was i t  no t  su f f i c ien t  to  keep 

those th ings a t  home in  a  sa fe ,  a  typ i ca l  sa fe?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  ment ioned,  the  sa fe ty  s i tua t ion  

in  South  A f r i ca  was is  -  was an  is  a  ser ious concern  fo r  

everybody,  and as  I  ment ioned before ,  I  was dep loyed w i th  

a  c lose p ro tec t ion  o f f i cer  fo r  sa fe ty  and secur i t y  reasons.   

In  add i t ion  to  t ha t ,  o r  aga in ,  fo r  sa fe ty  and secur i t y  

reasons there  was secur i t y  guards tha t  were  dep loyed a t  20 

my home by Transnet .   So f rom tha t  perspect ive ,  sa fe ty  

and secur i t y  was a  se r ious concern .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And how o f ten  wou ld  you go  then to  

Knox Vau l t?  

MR SINGH:    Not  very  o f ten ,  s i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  do  you mean by  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Maybe once a  month ,  maybe once  in  two 

months .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Once a  month ,  so  approx imate ly  12  

t imes…[ in te rvene ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  tha t  was a  yes,  I  th ink  you  

nodded.  

MR SINGH:    Oh,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  w i l l  no t  be  recorded,  so  I  th ink  your  

answer  was yes.  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  wou ld  be  12 t imes or  so  a  

year,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then what  caused you to  g ive  up  

these four  sa fe ty  depos i t  boxes in  2016 or  2017.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  was –  i t  co inc ided w i th  my  

suspens ion  a t  Eskom and I  needed to  access – we l l  no t  

hav ing  a  sa la ry  beyond tha t ,  i t  was obv ious ly  go ing  to  be  a 20 

prob lem to  main ta in  these boxes,  and tha t  a lso  co inc ided 

w i th  my ex-w i fe  and fami l y  mov ing  to  Durban and l i v ing  in  

Durban.   So we needed to  access the  in fo rmat ion  and the  

documents  and s tu f f  tha t  was s to red fo r  them.   So tha t  was  

then the  reason fo r  us  to  g ive  up  the  boxes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you go ing  to  p rov ide  de ta i l s  o f  

the  ren ta l  cos ts  o f  these boxes when you come back?  

MR SINGH:    To  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  can re t r ieve  the  

in fo rmat ion  I  w i l l  do  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You cou ld  a lso  make inqu i r ies  v ia  

Knox Vau l t .    

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  what  I  p lan  to  do .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  l e t  us  go  to  parag raph 41  

then:  

“ In  a  few ins tances a f te r  th is…[ in tervene]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh so  go ing  back to  

the  ren t  you pa id  fo r  these boxes or  each one o f  these 

boxes per  yea r.   Would  i t  be  fa i r  to  say,  i f  you  were  pay ing  

I  th ink  you sa id  about  2000 someth ing  rand fo r  each per  

year.   So i t  wou ld  be  2000 someth ing  t imes fou r?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  tha t  i s  what  you wou ld  pay fo r  i t ,  

so  i t  was probab ly  be tween e igh t  and R10 000,00.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id  I  was qua l i f y ing  tha t  by  

say ing  i t  m igh t  be  tha t  tha t  approx imat ion  m ight  ac tua l l y  be  20 

very  wrong.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  I  accept  tha t  I  jus t  wanted  to  -  so  

tha t  i s  what  more  or  less  you th ink  you were  pay ing  as  ren t  

fo r  the  boxes annua l ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  jus t  so  tha t  we have i t  on  the 
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record  your  es t imate ,  as  you s i t  here  now,  i s  these four  

boxes d id  no t  cos t  you more  than R10 000,00 a  year  fo r  a l l  

o f  them? 

MR SINGH:    As  I  reca l l ,  yes  wh ich  might  ac tua l l y  be  very  

wrong,  as  I  sa id ,  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    But  Mr  S ingh,  do  you want  to  rev ise  

tha t  f igure  or  i s  tha t  the  best  you can do?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  maybe fo r  the  purposes o f  

today,  I  th ink  i t  i s  p robab ly  best  fo r  me to  rese rve  comment  

in  te rms o f  what  the  va lue  is  un t i l  I  ac tua l l y  engage and  10 

f ind  the  appropr ia te  number  e l se  we wou ld  be  p ick l ing .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  le t  us  then go to  paragraph 41:  

“ In  a  few ins tances a f te r  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  

res idence,  S ingh wou ld  ins t ruc t  me to dr ive  to  Knox  

Vau l t  a t  the  corner  o f  R iv ie ra  and R iver  s t ree ts  

across  the  road f rom the  K i l la rney Mal l . ”  

I s  tha t  the  same Knox Vau l t  tha t  we have been speak ing  

about?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “S ingh wou ld  then take  the  fu l l  bag  20 

f rom the  boot  o f  our  veh ic le  and  go in to  the  Knox 

Vau l t  bu i ld ing  wh i ls t  I  wou ld  wa i t  fo r  h im in  the  

veh ic le  in  the  park ing  area.   A f te r  a  few minutes ,  he  

wou ld  re turn  to  t he  veh ic le  and I  cou ld  see tha t  the  

bag tha t  he  ca r r ied  was now empty.   I  suspected 
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tha t  S ingh had depos i ted  the  contents  in  a  sa fe  a t  

Knox Vau l t . ”  

You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  we have d iscussed,  I  deny th is  

a l legat ion  by  w i tness 3 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  w i tness  3  ever  take  you to  Knox  

Vau l t?  

MR SINGH:    No,  he  d id  no t ,  s i r  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you eve r  ta lk  to  h im abou t  your  

depos i t  boxes a t  Knox Vau l t?  10 

MR SINGH:    No,  I  d id  no t  s i r  and  I  th ink  maybe Mr  Cha i r  

jus t  to  g ive  the  Commiss ion  some background or  my nature  

Mr  Cha i r  I  am a  re la t i ve ly  p r iva te  person and you w i l l  

no t ice  as  we l l  tha t  f rom wi tness  3  tes t imony,  I  normal ly  

used to  take  my ca r,  p r iva te  car  to  work  on  a  Monday and  

then take  i t  back  on  a  weekend.   Now tha t  was the  reason 

fo r  tha t  was tha t  so  I  have my weekends to  myse l f .   

So w i tness 3  wou ld  no t  have fo r  example  d r iven me 

on a  weekend to  anywhere ,  maybe there  was one  or  two  

rare  occas ions when tha t  was requ i red ,  bu t  by  and  la rge ,  20 

tha t  never  happened.   So f rom a  perspect ive  o f  h im tak ing  

me to  dea l  w i th  my p r iva te  a f fa i r s ,  whether  i t  be  v is i t s  to  

the  Gupta  res idence or  whether  i t  be  to  Knox Vau l ts  o r  

whethe r  i t  be  to  -  anyth ing  tha t  I  deemed pr i va te  I  wou ld  

no t  use  w i tness 3  fo r  any or  any t rans i to ry  source  fo r  tha t  
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mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you wou ld  no t  d iscuss persona l  o r  

p r iva te  …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    …mat ters .    So as  far as you know he d id 

not  know that  you had these deposi t  boxes at  Knox Vaul t? 

MR SINGH:   No S ir.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight  Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes just  to pick up on the 

Chairperson’s quest ion then you never spoke to Witness 3 10 

about  you having a – a faci l i ty at  Knox Vaul t  – where does 

he come up wi th th is f rom? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  am just  as start led as you as to how 

he comes up wi th th is al legat ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  Mr Singh i t  should be qui te a 

coincidence i t  seems that  you had a ser ies of  boxes at  Knox 

Vaul t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you went there once a month.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You went there once a month,  you did 

not  te l l  you say your dr iver about  th is but  somehow he 20 

comes up wi th th is paragraph 41 i t  seems qui te coinc idental .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  You see how i t  – how i t  looks I  mean.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  wi l l  – I  wi l l  afford… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  hang on one second.   

MR SINGH:   I  wi l l  afford… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   He comes up wi th his version which you 

say is a fabr icat ion.   I t  includes going to the Gupta 

res idence,  those vis i ts and i t  includes him saying on certain  

occasions he wi l l  take you to Knox Vaul t .   Now I  assume 

there are a number of  businesses which do the same 

business as Knox Vaul t .   He says he would take there to say 

that  is fabr icat ion but  on your version i t  so happens that  

indeed you do have not  one box – deposi t  box but  four at  

Knox Vaul t .   I t  so happens on your  version that  actual ly you 

do vis i t  – you did vis i t  Knox Vaul t  regular ly once a month 10 

your est imate.   On your version i t  must  be such a 

coincidence.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink that  is what Mr Myburgh is rais ing 

wi th you.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes certainly Chai r.    

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  i f  I  again can fol low a response? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  20 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  my – my under – my – my view in  

terms of  wi tness 3’s  test imony regarding the Knox Vaul t  

emanates f rom again an issue that  was raised f rom the 

commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  



12 MARCH 2021 – DAY 360 
 

Page 71 of 145 
 

MR SINGH:   I  had occasion to read in the media that  the 

commission had taken possession or in some way,  shape or 

form got  informat ion relat ing to  the fact  that  certain  

individuals impl icated in  state capture had boxes at  Knox 

Vaul t  and the person in quest ion then had legal  issues wi th  

the commission and therefore there were legal  outcomes 

associated there f rom.  

 So again Mr Chai r  the issue of  Knox Vaul ts and 

Witness 3 as i t  re lates to mysel f  could have only emanated 

f rom the commission i tsel f  v isa vie those issues that  existed 10 

wi thin the commission and the knowledge the commission 

had relat ive to any individuals that  had boxes at  Knox Vaul ts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you saying somebody within the 

commission must  have told Witness 3 to say that  he used to 

take you to Knox Vaul ts because that  person in the 

commission was aware that  somebody else had kept  deposi t  

boxes at  Vaul t  Knox is that  what you are saying? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  in terms… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you saying he was spoon fed by 

somebody in the commission to  make this  fa lse al legat ion 20 

against  you? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  that  is my assert ion because as we 

have been d iscussing wi th 00:04:31 thus far as I  said his  

ent i re test imony is a relat ive fabr icat ion and at  the end you 

asked me the quest ion why would he fabr icate and I  have no 
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idea why.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you think – you think there is 

somebody in the commission who just  had something against  

you so much that  they would ask somebody to fa lsely  

impl icate you in these vis i ts to Vaul t  Knox – Knox Vaul t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  the only th ing that  I  know is that  the – 

the commission was in possession of  a l ist  of  individuals that  

did have boxes at  Knox Vaul t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   

MR SINGH:   Subsequent to that  I  then get  th is aff idavi t  that  10 

effect ive ly impl icates me in al leged wrongdoing v isa vie  

Knox Vaul ts coming f rom Witness 3.   Under the let  us say 

the pressure that  had come from as he described i t  e i ther 

Transnet or the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.   Just  before we move 

on can I  ask you this?  You say at  a point  in t ime you might  

have kept  up to R100 000.00 at  Knox Vaul t  you recal l  that  

evidence? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Where d id that  money come f rom? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  there was a number of  sources I  th ink 

the – f rom t ime to t ime had occasion to be involved in a 

fami ly business.   I  d id in  some instances engage in gambl ing 

f rom now 00:06:13 I  d id gamble in casinos and occasional ly 
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house raising.   I  d id also do some consul t ing work visa vie 

f inancial  consul t ing.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Some moonl ight ing? 

MR SINGH:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   For cash? 

MR SINGH:   Yes Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Whi le you were the Group Chief  

Financial  Off icer of  Transnet? 

MR SINGH:   S i r  and i t  was maybe the – the act iv i t ies that  I  

descr ibe was probably in leading up to the Chief  Financia l  10 

Off icer  posi t ion as wel l  as 00:06:53.   The fact  that  I  was 

Chief  Financial  Off icer  of  Transnet at  the t ime obviously 

gave me exposure and because of  that  exposure and 

because of  the experience that  I  had gained at  the t ime yes 

people were interested in what I  knew.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  you were appointed as the Chief  

Financial  Off icer  on the 1s t  of  July 2013 and you as I  

understand i t  took up a faci l i ty  at  Knox Vaul t  in 2013,  

correct? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A lr ight .   The – the invest igator  that  the 

commission’s invest igator that  was involved in  relat ion to the 

Drivers has just  sent  me a Whatsapp to say and we can 

conf i rm this i f  necessary that  the commission learnt  about  

Knox Vaul t  f rom Witness 3.   The f i rst  t ime the commission 
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heard about Knox Vaul t  I  do not  suppose you can comment 

on that? 

MR SINGH:   I  cannot comment on that  Si r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja the – I  mean the effect  of  what Mr 

Myburgh is put t ing to you is that  contrary to what you say 

because you – you were suggest ing that  i t  would only have 

been af ter… 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVEER:   Chairperson  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVEER:   I  am sorry you can f in ish.   You 10 

can f in ish then I  wi l l  deal  wi th an issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay but  you must  te l l  me i f  you cannot  

hear me.  What  Mr Myburgh is put t ing to you based on what 

the invest igator is saying is that  contrary to what you are 

saying which is that  the commission Witness 3 must  have 

been given informat ion by somebody in the commission 

about Knox Vaul ts and your involvement wi th them.  The 

informat ion that  he is put t ing to you is  that  the invest igator is  

saying actual ly the person who – f rom whom the commission 

heard for the f i rst  t ime about the Knox Vaul ts was Witness 3 20 

so which suggests i t  seems to me that  the discovery of  the 

individual  or ind ividuals that  you were talk ing about in 

respect  for whom there was – there were legal  proceedings 

and so on came e i ther at  the same t ime or af ter but  Witness 

3 was the f i rst  person to te l l  the invest igators about Knox 
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Vaul ts and so on.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVEER:   Chairperson  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVEER:   I f  you are f in ished at  th is stage 

I . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVEER:   I  wish to  raise some concerns.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVEER:   By the statement that  comes 

f rom Mr Myburgh.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVEER:   Fi rst  of  a l l  th is version is not  

under oath we do not  know who the invest igator is and i f  i t  is 

correct  what Mr Myburgh is suggest ing I  would have thought 

that  that  would form part  of  Witness 3’s aff idavi t  or the 

evidence that  he gave.   Al l  we would have been provided at  

some stage wi th an aff idavi t  by the invest igator stat ing same 

and that  of  course in  return would have had legal  

ramif icat ions per taining const i tut ional  r ights to pr ivacy 

etcetera.   So at  th is stage I  want to almost  go to the point  20 

where I  say I  object  to th is l ine of  –  of  quest ioning.   I  do not  

th ink i t  is fa i r  to the wi tness more so having regard to the 

fact  that  i t  comes via a Whatsapp message f rom an unknown 

invest igator wi th the greatest  of  respect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  th ink that  – I  th ink that  th ings happen 
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in th is way because Mr Singh is making this al legat ion for 

the f i rst  t ime that  the commission – somebody in the 

commission must  have fed this informat ion to Witness 3.   But  

what would be legi t imate is for you to say the invest igator 

who has given Mr Myburgh the informat ion should go on 

aff idavi t  under oath to pro – I  th ink that  would be legi t imate.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  th ink I  had ment ioned that  of  course 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  is not  just  a Whatsapp Mr Pierre 

Leonard is s i t t ing in the gal lery.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And sent  i t  to me he would be in  a 

posi t ion to conf i rm that  immediately.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     But  i f  you want an aff idavi t  DCJ of  

course we would do that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  would be provided.   But  as I  say you 

know I  th ink Mr Singh is  making this al legat ion for  the f i rst  20 

t ime.  I f  the – i f  he had made i t  before I  am sure the legal  

team would have explored the opt ion of  get t ing an aff idavi t  

f rom the invest igators.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVEER:   Chairperson thank you very 

much.  Just  one further issue we might  be on di fferent  pages 
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but  I  could not  see what Mr Singh said as an al legat ion made 

as such I  saw i t  as an inference that  he drew from 

informat ion that  he got .   But  I  wi l l  leave i t  at  that  for the 

point  I  need – I  am thankful  I  th ink i f  the informat ion is 

suppl ied under oath.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVEER:   We can then prudent ly and 

properly deal  wi th  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no,  no that  is f ine.   Okay Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   And then at  paragraph 42 10 

the – Witness 3 goes on to say:  

“To the best  of  my recol lect ion I  had taken Singh to the Knox 

Vaul ts on s ix or seven occasions af ter v is i ts to the Gupta 

res idence.”  

So on his version the major i ty of  t imes that  you went to the 

Gupta residence you would then go to Knox Vaul t ,  you want  

to comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   I  deny that  al legat ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Incidental ly Mr Singh perhaps and I  am 

sure we can get  the exact  d istance but  how far is i t  f rom 20 

Saxonwold residence of  the Gupta’s to the Knox Vaul t?  Not  

far? 

MR SINGH:   Probably say i t  is f ive ki lometres.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   How long would i t  take you to dr ive 

there? 



12 MARCH 2021 – DAY 360 
 

Page 78 of 145 
 

MR SINGH:   Five minutes you know. 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   F ive or ten minutes.   Do you know of  

any… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  am sorry.   Just  remember Mr Singh 

nodding is not  good enough.  

MR SINGH:   Sorry Sir.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i f  you want to say yes you just  say yes.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   F ive or ten minutes.   Do you know of  10 

any equivalent  fac i l i ty c loser to the Gupta residence? 

MR SINGH:   No S ir.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then just  one last  quest ion on this.   

You say you had occasion to  go to your  safety deposi t  boxes 

once a month,  why? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  cannot recal l  the exact  detai ls I  sa id 

i t  was an approximate once maybe twice a month – sorry 

maybe once a month or maybe once in two months but  I  

cannot recal l  the exact  detai ls of  why I  would vis i t  these 

boxes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   At  paragraph 43:  

“ I t  should be noted that  we never d iscussed what happened 

at  the Gupta residence or what the bags that  he col lected 

f rom the residence contained or  the reasons for  v is i ts to the 

Knox Vaul t . ”  
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Any comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  as I  have test i f ied we have never  

discussed any issues regarding to Knox Vaul ts and in terms 

of  the vis i ts to the Gupta residence as I  test i f ied he has 

never taken me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Paragraph 44:  

“ I  furthermore recal l  a day somet ime in 2015 when I  was 

dr iv ing Mr Singh to a scheduled meet ing on the way he 

received a cal l  on his cel lu lar phone.  Af ter he had f in ished 

the cal l  he inst ructed me to d ivert  f rom my route and 10 

immediately dr ive to the Gupta residence.   I  could hear  that  

there was some panic in his voice.   We consequent ly  rushed 

to the Gupta residence and on our  arr ival  Singh got  out  in a 

hurry.   I  wai ted in  the parking area for approximately an hour 

and a hal f  for him to return f rom the meet ing.”  

Any comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  have deal t  wi th th is paragraph in my 

test imony I  deny i t  and I  f ind i t  re la t ively conspicuous that  in 

the next  paragraph he basical ly says I  fe l l  asleep.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  you what? 20 

MR SINGH:   That  I  fe l l  as leep.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   In the next  paragraph.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  let  us get  to the next  paragraph.    

“When Singh returned f rom the meet ing at  approximately  
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17:30 he appeared to be nervous and stressed.   When he got  

into the vehicle he said F that  th ing.   He then inst ructed me 

to dr ive him home and turn off  the radio.  Short ly thereaf ter 

he fel l  asleep.   This was unusual  behaviour f rom him.”  

What do you say? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  th is is – th is is  the paragraph that  I  

had referenced previously.   I t  is – i t  is for me i t  is 

inconceivable that  I  would be in an i rate state,  get  into a car,  

l isten to the radio and fal l  asleep wi thin a distance of  –  

t ravel  distance of  less than twenty minutes at  5:30 in the 10 

af ternoon.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  Witness 3 himsel f  as you say says 

i t  was unusual .  

MR SINGH:   But  I  am saying to you i t  is unusual  f rom a 

perspect ive that  I  would fal l  asleep.   I  would not  fa l l  asleep.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  is what he says.  

MR SINGH:   So why would I  fa l l  asleep i f  I  was i rate Sir? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You accept  though this is unusual  

behaviour i f  i t  happened? 

MR SINGH:   For me yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And he himsel f  says i t  is unusual .  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  i f  i t  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   And I  am saying i t  d id not  happen.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A lr ight .   So let  us then deal  wi th the 
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Three Rivers Lodge.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So he must  have on your vers ion he must  

have sat  down and fabr icated al l  of  these stor ies you went to 

the Gupta’s,  you went in,  when you came back he was upset  

and then got  into the car  said put  o ff  the radio and then fel l  

asleep.   He must have sat  down and say how am I  going to  

f rame Mr Singh,  fabr icate a story and he went to th is extent  

of  a l l  of  these detai ls? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  i f  I  again may offer my view? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MR SINGH:   In th is regard.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   I f  you look at  in my view what Witness 3 is  

t ry ing to al lude to or infer f rom this is that  I  was under 

instruct ions of  the Gupta’s.   So soon as they phone I  would 

go.   Because he said this was unscheduled – we changed 

di rect ion f rom a scheduled meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Based on a phone cal l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  that  does not  necessari ly mean 20 

you were instructed.   You might  have decided.  

MR SINGH:   No,  no indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Af ter the cal l .  

MR SINGH:   I  am saying his inference.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR SINGH:   I  am saying his inference is  – is such that  I  

would have lef t  whatever meet ing we were going to which 

was Transnet business and deal  wi th th is matter whatever  

the matter was.   And having gone to that  meet ing deal t  wi th  

the subject  matter of  that  meet ing,  whatever the subject  

matter of  that  meet ing was created me to be in a state of  

anxiety.   Then fel l  asleep.   Right .   I f  you then go to  

Witnesses – Witness 3 ’s test imony relat ive to Mr P i ta you 

f ind the same inference that  he draws.  That  they were on a 

way to a meet ing Mr P i ta gets a cal l  and there they reverted 10 

to Saxonwold.   So in  my view again I  would suggest  that  i t  is 

probably the reverse coincidence that  I  am going to  fo ld in 

terms of  saying but  i t  is coincidental  that  two CFO’s of  the 

organisat ion gets the same cal l  and they act  in the same 

way.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Hm.  Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  th ink the quest ion that  was posed to 

you by the DCJ i f  I  could just  p ick up on that?  I  th ink why 

would the dr iver – f i rst ly – f i rst  of  a l l  f rom you have said you 

seem to have had a good relat ionship wi th th is dr iver.    20 

MR SINGH:   Indeed Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In fact  on your version he t ips you off  

about  the fact  that  he is going to  give an aff idavi t  against  

you.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  he did not  t ip  me off  that  he was going 
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to give an aff idavi t .   He sought my guidance in terms of  what  

he should do and again I  have a v iew about that  but  i f  you 

would l ike i t  I  can give i t  to you but  I  do not  know but  no,  no 

he does not  t ip me off .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  but  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  I  am sorry.   Was he not  saying 

whether he would have said he had been approached by 

Transnet or had been approached by the commission or he – 

whether he was saying he was volunteer ing to  give some 

informat ion to the commission but  was he not  in  effect  10 

saying I  may soon be making a statement or aff idavi t  to the 

commission that  may talk about  when I  was dr iv ing you.   

Wel l  in effect  was he not  saying that? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  I  do not  th ink the context  of  the 

conversat ion was in the – in the l ight  of  h im t ipping me off .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR SINGH:   I t  was more in the l ight  of… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Asking for guidance.  

MR SINGH:   Asking for guidance of  what should be done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  20 

MR SINGH:   And – and that  is the context  in which the 

conversat ion then happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you say you had a good relat ionship 

wi th him.  

MR SINGH:   Ja I  had a cordial  relat ionship wi th him.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you d id not  have something negat ive 

to say about you why would he have cal led you on your  

vers ion? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  again I  wi l l  be cal led on to – to g ive 

you my view in relat ion to th is matter.   I t  was also a very,  

very st range occurrence for me and the reason why i t  was 

st range i t  is for a couple of  reasons.  

 The f i rst  reason is the fact  that  I  do not  normal ly  

answer phone cal ls that  I  do not  know who they are f rom.   10 

Lately i t  has been f rom the media so hence I  do not  answer 

those cal ls but  anyway i t  was an 012 number that  – i t  was 

landl ine number f rom which he had cal led on the day and the 

reason for me to having answered that  landl ine cal l  and not  

knowing who i t  was that  I  had occasion to  be in a meet ing in  

Pretor ia.  And the individuals that  I  was meet ing in Pretor ia  

on the day was actual ly a bi t  delayed.   So I  – my view was 

this 012 number was them that  was cal l ing to say that  they 

are a bi t  late and they wi l l  be there or someth ing l ike that .  

So when – when the cal l  – when I  eventual ly  answered the 20 

cal l  i t  was then Witness 3 and so that  is the second reason 

why I  found i t  st range.   One was that  I  answered the landl ine 

number but  then i t  was Witness 3.   And then the 

conversat ion went  on as I  suggested.   Now in my conspi racy 

theory,  my 00:23:34 based on the evidence that  I  have led 
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here in  terms of  how and why Witness 3 has done what he 

has done in my v iew i t  is not  inconceivable that  Wi tness 3 

was probably at tempt ing to tape the conversat ion to  be able 

to understand what would I  say when I  was approached 

regarding the v is i ts to the Gupta residence and is  

involvement there in.   But  as I  said in the – my responses to 

him were cordial ,  i t  was basical ly  to say Witness 3 you – 

Witness 3 you are under obl igat ion to do certain  things 

please cont inue to do i t  as you are requi red to do so.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink we must take a f ive minutes 10 

adjournment.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   Mr Singh I  just  got  two 

more quest ions before we go to the Three Rivers Lodge.   

Can you think of  why Witness 3 would f rame you given the 20 

construct ive relat ionship that  you had with him? 

MR SINGH:   I t  baff les me Sir  I  have no explanat ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And perhaps one other quest ion.   I f  he 

wanted to f rame you he seems to have come up wi th a very 

elaborate and detai led version,  why? 
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MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chair  I  am sorry Mr Chair  the only v iew 

that  I  have in terms of  a reason why Mr – I  am sorry Witness 

3 would undertake such an exercise is i f  he was fear ing for  

his job or was under duress relat ing to h is employment at  

Transnet.   That  is  the only reason I  can prefer at  th is  stage.   

In terms of  the detai led nature of  his evidence i f  he was as I  

have suggested been inf luenced by ei ther Transnet  or  the 

commission invest igators then he would end up wi th 

re lat ively compel l ing and detai led account of  his version.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   So as far as Transnet is concerned is  your 

vers ion that  for the Witness 3 to f rame you l ike this i t  must  

mean that  somebody or some people at  Transnet must  have 

put  pressure on him to say things about you that  he told 

them were not  t rue.  

MR SINGH:   Chai r  I  d id… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And he – he – they put  pressure and he did 

this because he thought his job would be in danger.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  you wi l l  –  I  d id not  hear for a per iod of  

t ime.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Let  me repeat.   So I  am asking 

whether what you are saying is that  insofar as Transnet is 

concerned Witness 3 would have f ramed you l ike this i f  

somebody at  Transnet  or some people at  Transnet put  

pressure on him to falsely impl icate you even i f  he to ld them 
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that  these things that  they would have said he must  say 

about you d id not  happen.  

MR SINGH:   That  is correct  Si r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   Mr Singh the bags 

received f rom men of  Asian descent  at  Three Rivers Lodge 

paragraph 46 at  page 130.  

“During July of  2014 the Transnet  Execut ive 

Commit tee at tended a week long strategy 

session at  the Three Rivers Lodge in  10 

Vereeniging. ”  

Would you conf i rm that? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  do not  have direct  recol lect ion of  the 

date but  I  do concede that  we did have breakaways as the 

[ indist inct ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   47 

“ I  dropped Singh off  at  the venue ear ly in the 

week and picked him up on the Fr iday 

af ternoon again.”  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  i f  we did have these breakaways that  20 

would be the way that  i t  would happen.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   48 

“Whi le I  wai ted for Singh on the Fr iday 

af ternoon to f in ish the session I  not iced four  

men who appeared to be f rom Asian descent  
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( they looked l ike Chinese men to me) 

standing around a Hyundai  H1 vehicle in the 

parking area.   Two of   the men appeared to  

be busy wi th a conversat ion on a cel lu lar 

phone. ”  

Any comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  do not  recal l  h is giv ing ev idence 

re lat ing to someth ing that  he had seen.   I  have no comment.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   49.  

“The next  th ing I  not iced how the two men 10 

(who spoke on the cel lu lar phone) took two 

luggage bags f rom the vehicle.  One b lack the 

other one maroon and went inside the lodge 

area where the execut ive management  

meet ing was held. ”  

Any comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  again he is  relaying events that  I  have 

no recol lect ion of  or f i rst -hand knowledge of .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   At  50.  

“At  around 15h00 I  received a sms f rom 20 

Singh request ing me to come to the 

conference room where the meet ing was 

held.   As I  entered the room the two men who 

took the luggage bags into the lodge were in  

the room together wi th Molefe and Singh.   
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S ingh pointed to the maroon luggage bag and 

requested me to take the bag to our vehicle.  

I  took the bag and put  i t  in the boot  of  the 

vehicle.”  

Any comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  deny this al legat ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i f  you had a bag with you in the 

conference room that  you wanted to be put  in the boot  of  

your vehicle would you typical ly contact  your dr iver and ask 

him to help you? 10 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  typical ly that  would not  be the case.   I  

would not  have a maroon luggage bag in the conference 

i tsel f .   The conference room i tsel f  would be for  obviously an 

EXCO break away or whatever the agenda for the day was 

so that  bag would be a work bag so i t  would conta in work 

re lated informat ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So that  is – that  is not  what I  am 

asking you Mr Singh.  

MR SINGH:   Yes Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am asking you take a typical  work 20 

day;  you have a bag.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   With you at  a conference cent re.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you want i t  to be put  in the boot  of  
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your vehic le my quest ion is would you typical ly contact  your  

dr iver you knew that  he is in the parking lot  to come and 

fetch the bag to put  i t  in the vehicle? 

MR SINGH:   No S ir.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Not  you would go and do that  yoursel f?  

MR SINGH:   Yes Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  you heard the evidence for  

example of  Mr Molefe when he was si t t ing in the Carl ton 

Centre conference centre or  room and he did not  have his  

cel l  phone with h im and i t  was in the bag in  his off ice he 10 

contacted his dr iver  to  go fetch the cel l  phone.  You used the 

dr ivers on a more l imi ted basis.  

MR SINGH:   As I  test i f ied Si r  I  sa id I  normal ly t ry and keep 

mysel f  pr ivate so to the extent  that  I  wi l l  have the abi l i ty to  

do stuff  I  do i t  on my own.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So you tel l ing the Chairperson that  i f  

you had a bag in a conference room and your dr iver was 

outside in the parking lot  wi th your car you would not  get  his  

assistance to  take the bag and put  i t  in the boot  you would 

walk that  way yoursel f  out  of  the conference room? 20 

MR SINGH:   Yes Sir  because in a l l  of  my instances al l  my 

bags are t rol ley bags so I  wi l l  i t  mysel f .   Even on t ravels i f  I  

t ravel  wi th a bag I  take my bag mysel f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  Mr S ingh.   So he says that  at  

50.1:  
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“That  I  need to ment ion that  the bag was 

real ly heavy however I  d id not  know what i t  

contained at  the t ime. ”  

The next  sub-paragraph.  

“ I  recognised that  the bag – sorry I  

recognised that  the bag as one of  the 

luggage bags that  the Chinese men had 

earl ier taken into the meet ing room.”  

Any comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   Sorry Mr Chai r  I  deny these two paragraphs.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“Whi le I  was seated in our vehicle wai t ing for  

Singh af ter put t ing the maroon luggage bag 

in the boot  of  the vehicle I  saw Molefe’s 

dr iver;  ( I  cannot  clear ly recal l  i f  i t  was 

Witness 1 or a col league) put t ing a black 

luggage bag f rom the same lodge venue to 

the vehicle that  was used to t ransport  

Molefe. ”  

Want to comment on that? 20 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  cannot comment on this as he does 

not  refer to me in any way.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  a very detai led version again is i t  

not? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  th ink as Mr Myburgh has pointed out  
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that  Mr Molefe did use his dr ivers in a certain way I  th ink he 

has test i f ied to that  and Witness 3 would have known that .   

So i t  is not  unusual  behaviour for Witness 3 to have given a 

statement l ike this .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sorry that  was not  my quest ion.    

MR SINGH:   Yes Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  is a detai led version that  he is  

put t ing forward in th is aff idavi t .  

MR SINGH:   I  agree.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Correct .   51.1 10 

“ I  recognised this bag as the other bag which 

the Chinese men had ear l ier taken into the 

meet ing room.”  

Any comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   As i t  re lates to the inference that  these bags 

were related in – to me in any way I  deny that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So that  was a Fr iday I  take i t  what  

would happen is you have explained is he would dr ive you 

back to the Carl ton Cent re,  you would get  into your blue 

BMW M3 you would go home for the weekend and you would 20 

br ing your blue BMW M3 back to the Car l ton Centre 

basement on a Monday.   Is that  r ight? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   At  paragraph 52.  

“The next  Monday Singh drove to the Carl ton 
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Centre wi th his BMW M3 he lef t  the vehicle 

in the basement for the week.”  

That  would be consistent  wi th what you have said correct? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“That  Fr iday af ternoon I  was about to take 

Singh’s vehicle to  the car wash. ”  

Any comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   He would occasional ly do that .   I  am not  too 

sure i f  i t  was exact ly in th is instance but  he would 10 

occasional ly do that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So you could have a nice clean car? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Over the weekend as we al l  en joy.    

“As usual  I  checked that  there was no 

valuables – that  there were no va luables in  

the boot  that  could go missing.”  

You accept  that  he would usual ly do that  before taking your 

vehicle to be washed? 

MR SINGH:   I  do not  recal l  h im actual ly returning any 20 

valuables to me at  any given point  in t ime when he took the 

cars to the carwash.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  perhaps i t  is because there were 

not  any before th is incident .  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  there may have occasion to leave stuff  in 
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the car l ike al l  of  us do.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay.    

“ I  ope – as I  opened the boot  I  saw the 

maroon bag that  I  had col lected f rom the 

Three Rivers Lodge the previous Fr iday.   

When I  p icked up the bag I  real ised that  i t  

weighed less than before.   I  opened the bag 

to see what was inside and I  not iced a 

couple of  rol ls of  R200 notes.   I  sms’d Singh 

and informed him that  the bag was st i l l  in the 10 

car.   He immediately came down to the 

basement and col lected the bag f rom me.”  

You want to comment on that? 

MR SINGH:   I  deny the contents of  th is paragraph.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now did you and your dr iver 

communicate by way of  sms? 

MR SINGH:   Probably Whatsapp but  very rarely.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  would you communicate 

electronical ly in that  way i t  would be easier than phoning the 

man? 20 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  the reason why we would communicate 

ei ther in Whatsapp or sms is because of  the fact  that  I  would 

be in meet ings.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes absolutely.  

MR SINGH:   So i t  would be easier for us to communicate in  
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that  way.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And he would not  want to d isturb you? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And that  was the mode that  you 

communicated wi th one another typical ly? 

MR SINGH:   Typical ly i f  we needed to.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Of  course he says that  he received a 

sms f rom you at  the Three Rivers Lodge to come to the 

conference room.  That  would be how you would contact  him 

and … 10 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  in that  case I  would have just  ca l led him 

on the phone because I  would not  have been engaged in any 

act iv i ty.   I t  was obviously under his  version i t  was the end of  

the day.   So there was no formal meet ings that  were un – 

that  was being conducted.   So I  would have cal led him.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  Mr – Mr al r ight .   I  suppose i t  must  

be qui te di ff icul t  to work out  when one would sms someone 

and when one would phone them.  I  mean al l  of  us work wi th 

th is al l  the t ime.  

MR SINGH:   Mr – wel l  Mr Chai r  in my view i f  I  was busy I  20 

would ei ther sms my PA or Whatsapp my PA or Whatsapp 

Witness 3 -  Witness 3.   But  else I  would ei ther pick up the 

phone and discuss issues wi th my PA or al ternat ively cal l  

Witness 3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink we must take the lunch break.    
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   We wi l l  adjourn unt i l  two.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  S ingh,  

cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  go  to  page 131 o f  Exh ib i t  BB-

14(d)?   The . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  131?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  the  s ta tement  o f  Wi tness 3 .  

MR SINGH :    I  am there  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  want  to  dea l  w i th  what  Wi tness 3  

says under  the  head ing ,  Vis i t s  to  Sahara  Compute r  Off i ces .    

“ I  came p repared.  

That  I  p rov ided CPO Serv ices  to  S ingh.    

I  took  h im to  the  Sahara  Computer  o f f i ces  in  

Midrand on a  number  o f  occas ions to  a t tend  

meet ings.    

I  do  no t  know wi th  whom he met  as  I  a lways 20 

wa i ted  fo r  h im in  the  veh ic le  in  the  park ing  

area. . . ”  

 You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  deny th is  comment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You say you went  there  bu t  you d id  
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no t  go  ins ide?  

MR SINGH :    No,  no t  fo r  meet ings.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   You know who owned 

Sahara  Compute rs?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Who?  

MR SINGH :    I t  was the  Gupta  fami ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you know who worked in  these  

o f f i ces?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  d id  any o f  the  Gupta ’s  worked 

there?  Your  now wi fe  worked  a t  Sahara  Computer ’s  

o f f i ces .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you  know which  any o f  the 

Gupta ’s  worked in  those o f f i ces?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  bu t  I  am assuming tha t  

some o f  them wou ld  have been there .   The fami l y  wou ld  

have been there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  I  omi t ted  to  say,  today we 

w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  go  beyond fou r  o ’c lock  as  we normal ly  

do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  a  re l ie f  Cha i rpe rson.   

[ laughs]    
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CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    And we are  qu i te  happy too  

Cha i r.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a l r i gh t .   So maybe  around  

quar te r  to  ten  to  four  we can ad jou rn .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  i f  you  go over  the  page to  

parag raph 54:  10 

“On a  few occas ions he  wou ld  ins t ruc t  me to  

dr ive  to  Sahara  Computer ’s  o f f i ces  a f te r  hours  

where  he  wou ld  p ick  up  a  c lose  f r i end.  

I  wou ld  usua l l y  d rop  them o f f  a t  h is  c lose  

f r iend ’s  res idence  in  Midrand. . . ”  

 Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    As  I  have s ta ted  befo re .   Ms Na icker (? )who is  

now my wi fe .   That  i s  who he is  re fe r r ing  to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  55 :  

“ I t  seems the  c lose  f r iend in i t ia l l y  worked fo r  20 

Transnet .   She was la te r  employed a t  

Sahara . . . ”  

 We have dea l t  w i th  tha t .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  jus t  a  few genera l  quest ions.   
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You have read th is  who le  a f f idav i t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you have not iced,  no  doubt ,  tha t  

Wi tness 3  imp l ica tes  Mr  G igaba,  yourse l f  and Mr  P i ta .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  d i f fe ren t  ways and to  d i f fe ren t  

degrees,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  ag ree.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  we go to  Mr  P i ta .   You wou ld  have 

read tha t  Wi tness 3  says a t  paragraph 62,  when  ta lk ing  10 

about  Mr  P i ta ’s  meet ings a t  the  Gupta ’s ,  tha t :  

“ I  d id  no t  see  h im re turn ing  f rom these 

meet ings car ry ing  any bags. . . ”  

 But  then a t  63 ,  he  goes on to  descr ibe  the  cash 

de l i very  a t  Knox Vau l ts  in  very  much the  same te rms as  he  

desc r ibed yours .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you have any idea how Mr  P i ta ,  

your  successor,  tha t  came to  have  a  fac i l i t y  a t  Knox  Vau l ts ,  

a t  leas t  on  th is  vers ion?  20 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  ab le  to  exp la in  tha t .   

However,  I  d id  a l lude to  the  fac t  tha t  the  co inc idences 

between the  s im i la r i t ies  o f  Wi tness  3 ’s  a l legat ions be tween  

myse l f  and Mr  P i ta  i s  qu i te  s ta rk .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mis te r. . .   Cha i rperson,  I  had jus t  
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been adv ised tha t  an  urgent  techn ica l  b reak fo r  f i ve  

m inutes  is  requ i red .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   We wi l l  take  a 

shor t  ad journment .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you .   Mr  S ingh,  I  wanted to  

end o f f  by  jus t  ask ing  you th i s .   Can you th ink  o f  any  

reasons why Wi tness 3  wou ld  po tent ia l l y  pu t  h i s  l i fe  in  10 

danger  by  fabr ica t ing  th is  vers ion?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  a t  th is  s tage,  I  do  

no t  want  to  ob jec t  bu t  i t  i s ,  w i th  the  greates t  o f  respect ,  an 

un founded s ta tement  tha t  i s  pu t  to  the  w i tness and fo r  h im 

to  answer  tha t  cannot  be  fa i r  in  any fo rm or  manner.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know i f  Mr  Myburgh had 

f in ished h is  ques t ion  or  p ropos i t ion .   I . . .   Do you want  to  

repeat  i t  Mr  Myburgh?  Le t  me hear  what  i t  i s .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  jus t  wan t  to  ask  Mr  S ingh as  to  

whethe r  he  cou ld  th ink  o f  any reason why Wi tness 3  m ight  20 

po tent ia l l y  pu t  h is  l i fe  in  danger  by  fabr ica t ing  a  vers ion  

aga ins t  Mr  S ingh.   That  i s  a l l  tha t  I  wanted to  ask  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  my ob jec t ion  is  to  

the  f i rs t  pa r t  o f  the  quest ion .   I t  i s  a  b i t  o f  a  loaded  
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quest ion  and espec ia l l y  in  the  manner  in  wh ich  i t  i s  pu t  to  

the  w i tness.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    As  you yourse l f  sa id  on  many  

occas ions,  you are  here  to  in te r rogate  the  verac i t y  o f  some 

–  we cannot  jus t  make s ta tements  where  we have no  

fac tua l  foundat ion  fo r  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe le t  me put  i t  th is  way.   Mr  S ingh,  

you have sa id  tha t  you and Wi tness 3  had –  were  on  good 

te rms,  a  very  good –  had a  co rd ia l  re la t ionsh ip .   I s  tha t  10 

r igh t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you know o f  any reason why he  

wou ld  want  to  po r t ray  you in  such a  bad l igh t  w i th  regard  to  

the  Gupta  fami ly,  your  a l leged re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them and  

say tha t  you v i s i ted  them and came out  w i th  bags,  I  th ink  

he  says and you  must  jus t  cor rec t  me i f  I  am miss ing  on ,  

wh ich  la te r  on  I  th ink  he  says he ,  a t  leas t  on  one occas ion ,  

found tha t  money  and tha t  you –  he  v is i ted  w i th  you  or  you 

v is i ted  Knox Vau l t  when in  fac t  there  was –  there  were  no  20 

such v is i t s  a t  a l l?    

 Or  i s  the  answer  the  one you  gave ear l ie r,  

namely,  you th ink  tha t  somebody  w i th in  the  Commiss ion  

fed  h im in fo rmat ion  and in f luence  h im to fa lse ly  imp l ica te  

you in  th is .   There  may be somebody in  Transnet  p ressured 
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h im to  make these fa lse  a l legat ions aga ins t  you? 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  my response wou ld  be  tha t  my v iew 

in  te rms o f  the  mot ive  beh ind  Wi tness 3 ’s  a l legat ions or  the  

mot ive  beh ind  h is  a l legat ions cou ld  on ly  s tem f rom the  fac t  

tha t  he  was concerned about  job  secur i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SINGH :    And bow to  the  pressure  tha t  he  a l luded to  

tha t  he  was under  in  the  te lephone  ca l l  w i th  myse l f .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Uhm. . . .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   And maybe i f  you do have a  name 

or  names,  do  no t  ment ion  them now.   Maybe you can look  

a t  –  we can look a t  the  names la te r.   I s  there  somebody a t  

Transnet  tha t  you  th ink  wou ld  rea l l y  want  you to  be  fa lse ly  

imp l ica ted  by  Wi tness 3  in  th ings tha t  you were  no t  

invo l ved in?   Do you know somebody who wou ld  rea l l y  

des i re  tha t  a t  Transnet?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  have a  name.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  have a  name? 

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  have a  name.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    And I  do  no t  th ink  I  w i l l  eve r  come up w i th  a  

name.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    Because I  am not  in  the  bus iness o f  
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specu la t ion  o r  ta rn ish  somebody ’s  c red ib i l i t y  and images.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  as  you w i l l  see ,  Mr  Cha i r.   In  the  course  

o f  lead ing  the  ev idence to  the  Commiss ion ,  you w i l l  f ind 

tha t  there  w i l l  be  a  cont inuous –  how can I  say  –  

cha l leng ing  o f  the  ev idence presented to  d r ive  a  cer ta in  

nar ra t i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Who and why tha t  was done,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  

no t  know.   I  do  no t  w ish  to  know.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  my ob l iga t ion  to  you is  to  come here  and  

po in t  ou t  these d i f fe rence and to  the  ex ten t  I  can  and to  

the  best  o f  my ab i l i t y  and so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know whether  Mr  Myburgh  you. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No.   May I  jus t  have two more  

quest ions. . .?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  

go  to  page 135,  paragraph 72.1  where  Wi tness 3  says tha t :  20 

“ I  am concerned about  my own and my fami ly ’s  

sa fe ty  and secur i t y,  spec i f i ca l l y  dur ing  and 

a f te r  my tes t imony. . . ”  

 I  p resume you cannot  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  cannot  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  never  th rea tened  
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Wi tness 3  and I  w i l l  never  do  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then one jus t  las t  th ing .   I t  came 

to  l igh t  in  the  Commiss ion ’s  p roceed ings ea r l ie r  th is  week 

and you might  have read abou t  th is ,  tha t  there  was  

a l leged ly  an  a t tempt  on  Wi tness 1 ’s  l i fe .   D id  you read  

about  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  d id  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Cou ld  I  ask  you then,  

p lease,  to  tu rn  to . . .  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  Mr  Cha i r.   A re  we done w i th  Wi tness 3 ,  10 

s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  we are  done w i th  Wi tness 3 .  

MR SINGH :    I  jus t  wanted to  make a  comment  on  your  

genera l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure .  

MR SINGH :    . . .ana lys is  o f  Wi tness 3 ’s  s ta tement  in  i t s  

en t i re ty.   Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  po in t  you to  

parag raph 20 o f  h is  a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  on  page 125 .   And i t  

re la tes  to  the  per iod  when Wi tness 3  was prov id ing  

serv i ces  to  Min i s te r  G igaba and you w i l l  no t ice  tha t  i t  i s  20 

the  per iod  be tween Ju ly  and December  2013.    

 I f  you  then move  on to  page 126  a t  parag raph 

22,  one wou ld  then note  tha t  Wi tness 3  i s  wa i t ing  in  a 

veh ic le  a t  the  res idence and descr ibes cer ta in  ind iv idua ls  

tha t  he  sees a t  paragraphs 21.1 ,  21 .2 ,  21 .3  and 21.4 .    
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 Mr  Cha i r,  my po in t  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  t ry  and 

make here  is .   As  i t  re la tes  to  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  Ngubane,  

in  my v iew,  I  th ink  they are  pub l i c  f igures  and Wi tness 3  

wou ld  be  ab le  to  recogn ise  them in  2013.  

 My persona l  v iew  is ,  in  2013 I  d id  no t  know who 

Mr  Matshe la  Koko was.   I  on ly  rea l l y  go t  to  know h im or  i f  I  

saw h im in  th is  room,  I  wou ld  no t  have not  recogn ise  h im in  

2013.   Equa l ly  so ,  Mr  Cha i r,  Ms L inda Mabaso the  fo rmer  

Cha i rperson o f  Transnet .   I  d id  no t  know.   I  do  no t  know 

unt i l  she  was the  Cha i rpe rson o f  Transnet  because she  10 

was os tens ib le  no t  a  pub l i c  f igu re .    

 The reason why I  ra ise  th is  i s  because Wi tness 3  

recogn ises these peop le  way back in  2013 ye t  these  

peop le  become pub l ic  f igures  in  2015.   So i t  i s  jus t  another  

anomaly  tha t  I  thought  I  shou ld  br i ng  to  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you ra ise  the  quest ion  how he may  

have known . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    How d id  he  make th is  connect ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .a l l  o f  these peop le?  

MR SINGH :    Peop le  a t  tha t  t ime.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   H ’m.   You are  obv ious ly  no t  in  

a  pos i t ion  to  pos i t i ve ly  say  he  d id  no t  know them then but  

you are  jus t  ra is ing  an  issue to  say i t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing  

to  know how he  knew peop le  tha t ,  as  fa r  as  you are  

concerned,  were  no t  in  the  pub l i c  eye?  
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MR SINGH :    Espec ia l l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  and in  par t i cu la r  

Ms L inda Mabaso  because he re fers  to  her  as  the  

Cha i rperson o f  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  was she not  the  Cha i rperson o f  

Transnet  a t  the  t ime?  

MR SINGH :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    She became . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    She became Cha i rperson o f  Transnet  

somet ime,  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    A f te r?  10 

MR SINGH :    A f te r  in  2015 or  so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay.   Was tha t  the  on ly  po in t?  

MR SINGH :    Cha i r,  tha t  was my on ly  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Okay thank you,  thank you.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am go ing  to  come back to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  i t  m igh t  be  usefu l  to  ge t  Wi tness  

3  to  comment  on  the  po in t  ra i sed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And maybe by  way o f  an  a f f idav i t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    As  you p lease Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  I  am go ing  to  come back 

to  the  ev idence o f  Wi tness 3  and I  am go ing  to  come back 

to  the  a l legat ions tha t  you went  to  the  Gupta ’s ,  the  
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a l legat ion  tha t  you co l lec ted  money and tha t  you depos i ted  

i t  a t  Knox Vau l ts ,  once I  have comple ted  my examinat ion  o f  

you and dea l t  w i th  the  t ransact ion  adv i so rs ,  the  award ing  

o f  tenders ,  e t  ce tera .   I  w i l l  come back to  tha t  a t  the  end.    

 I f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  p lease,  to  tu rn  back to  your  

exh ib i t ,  BB-23(a ) .  

MR SINGH :    Can  I  re tu rn  th is  s tu f f?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The d r iver ’s  you can put  away,  yes .    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  a t  some s tage you  10 

in t imated tha t  Mr  S ingh ’s  a f f idav i t  fo r  today might  be  

admi t ted  a f te r  lunch o r  someth ing?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  has  been  inc luded in  your  bund le  

now,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   You  wanted i t  to  be  admi t ted  

as  an  exh ib i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now or  la te r?   As long as  you  do not  

fo rge t  th is .   You might  do  i t  la te r  i f  tha t  i s  conven ien t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   My jun io r  w i l l  remind me.   20 

Perhaps we cou ld  tha t  jus t  be fore  we b reak.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am indebted to  you Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  cou ld  I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  
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the  second 10.6  D i rec t i ve  tha t  was issued to  you?   That  

you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 420.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  page  number  aga in?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    420 Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And a t  421,  you see you were  to ld  to  

de l i ver  w i th in  seven weeks o f  rece ip t ,  therea f te r  the  

Secre tary  o r  ac t i ng  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  a t  the 

address g iven,  e t  ce tera ,  the  dec la ra t ion  in  wh ich  you  

spec i f i ca l l y  address your  invo l vement  o r  you knowledge o f  10 

the  fo l low ing.   Do  you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  I  cou ld  ask  you then to  tu rn  t o  

page 425 amongst  the  i ssues tha t  you were  asked to  

address under  tha t  head a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  paragraph  

1 .12 .   Do you see  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  so  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you were  asked to  address the  

f requency and reasons fo r  v is i t s  to  the  Saxonwold  

res idence o f  the  Gupta  fami ly.  20 

MR SINGH :    I  do  so  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now le t  us  tu rn  to  your  answer.   That  

you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 1500.   And i f  I  can  d i rec t  your  

a t ten t ion ,  p lease ,  to  paragraph 300?  You w i l l  see  under  

the  head ing  a t  pa ra  1 .12 .   Do you see tha t?  
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MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You say a t  parag raph 300:  

“The on ly  person/w i tness tha t  p laces me a t  the  

Saxonwold  res idence o f  the  Gupta ’s  i s  Wi tness  

3 .  

In  respect  o f  Wi tness 3 ’s  ev idence,  I  w ish  to  

s ta te  tha t  I  deny h is  asse r t ion  tha t  I  v is i ted  the  

Gupta  res idence as  a l leged.  

I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  a  f ind ing  can be made 

tha t  he  is  a  c red ib le  w i tness,  espec ia l l y,  based 10 

on h i s  per fo rmance under  c ross-examinat ion  

on  Monday,  8  March 2021. . . ”  

 301:  

“Moreover,  I  w i sh  to  po in t  ou t  tha t  there  i s  no . . .  

o f  ob jec t i ve  ev idence to  substant ia te  h is  

a l legat ion  pe r ta in ing  to  my v is i t  to  the 

Saxonwold  res idence o f  the  Gupta ’s ”  

 302:  

“ Inso far  as  I  m ight  no t  have been  made aware  

o f  any o ther  persons mak ing  s im i la r  20 

a l legat ions.   I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  same i f  and when 

the  Commiss ion  produces the  ev idence in  th is  

regard . ”  

 303:  

“ I  do  no t  be l ieve  i t  i s  fa i r  to  ask  me to  answer  
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to  unsubstant ia ted  a l legat ions,  specu la t ion  

and innuendo. ”  

 R igh t?   That  i s  what  you sa id ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Where  do  you te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson  

you are  under  a  summons about  the  f requency and reasons  

fo r  your  v i s i t  to  the  Saxonwold  res idence?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  I  do  no t  unders tand your  quest ion  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You were  asked,  in  what  was a  

summons,  to  te l l  the  Commiss ion  about  your  f requency and  10 

reasons fo r  v is i t s  to  the  Saxonwold  res idence.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You do not  do  tha t .    

MR SINGH :    I  guess i t  i s  an  omiss ion  s i r  bu t  I  made fu l l  

d isc losure  to  you wh ich  I  apo log i se  fo r  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  you were  issued w i th  a  

summons to  answer  tha t  quest ion  and you land up  say ing  

a t  303:  

“ I  do  no t  be l ieve  i t  i s  fa i r  to  ask  me to  answer  

to  unsubstant ia ted  a l legat ions,  specu la t ion  20 

and innuendo. ”  

 What  were  you ta lk ing  about  there? 

MR SINGH :    Th is  i s  the  a l lega t ions re la t ing  to  o r  the  

in fe rences tha t  I  d rawn as i t  re la tes  to  ind i v idua ls  tha t  

v is i ted  the  Saxonwold  res idence.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  why. . .   Wel l ,  why d id  you  not  te l l  

the  Cha i rperson,  because o f  cou rse ,  we are  no t  dea l ing  

w i th  Wi tness 3  there .   You were  g iven a  10 .6  to  dea l  w i th  

Wi tness 3 .   And then you were  asked about  the  f requency  

and reasons fo r  you r  v is i t s .   Why d id  you no t  in  th is  

a f f idav i t ,  i f  you  were  go ing  to  be  comple te ly  t ransparent ,  

why d id  you not  s imp ly  te l l  the  Cha i rperson what  you sa id  

when I  s ta r ted  ask ing  you quest ions?   

 And I  asked you ,  how many t imes d id  you go  

there  and why d id  you go there .   Why d id  you not  pu t  i t  in  10 

your  a f f idav i t  tha t :   I  went  there  about  ten  t imes to  a t tend 

re l ig ious and cu l tu ra l  funct ions.   Why d id  you not  say  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    As  I  sa id ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  was omiss ion  on  

my par t  wh ich  I  apo log ise  fo r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No.   An omiss ion  on  your  par t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  one gets  the  impress ion  f rom your  

answer  he re  tha t  i t  was not  an  overs igh t  on  your  par t ,  no t  

to  g ive  th is  in fo rmat ion  because you had been asked to  

ind ica te  how many t imes you may have v is i ted  the  Gupta  20 

res idence and what  the  reasons were  fo r  you r  v i s i t s .   Your  

answer  seems to  ob jec t  to  be ing  asked those quest ions.   

You say:  

“ I  do  no t  be l ieve  i t  i s  fa i r  to  ask  me to  answer  

to  unsubstant ia ted  a l legat ions,  specu la t ion  
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and innuendo. ”  

 But  you are  s imp ly  be ing  asked to  the  ex ten t  you 

may have v is i ted  the  Gupta  res idence:   Te l l  us  how many  

t imes and what  were  the  reasons?  That  i s  what  you had  

been asked.   And  your  answer  seem to  be :   Do not  ask  me 

about  tha t .   You accept  th is  in te rpre ta t ion  o f  your  answer?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  aga in ,  I  do  no t  

w ish  to  ob jec t  bu t  I  th ink  the  answer  in  the  a f f idav i t  must  

be  read in  the  contex t  o f  who he responds to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I t  i s  no t  l i ke  i t  i s  suggested by  

Mr  Myburgh tha t  he  responds –  tha t  response re la tes  to  the  

f requency o f  the  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  res idence.   I  th ink  the  

w i tness t r ied  to  make tha t  po in t  and say:   I  dea l  w i th  th is  in  

re la t ion  to  the  head ing  tha t  i s  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes-no,  bu t  the  –  th is  i s  a  d i rec t i ve .   I t  

seeks cer ta in  in fo rmat ion  and in  h i s  answer  he  does  say ad  

paragraph 1 .12  o f  the  Regu la t ion  10 .6  D i rec t i ve .   Is  no t  an  

answer  to  an  a f f idav i t .   I t  i s  a  quest ion  tha t  i s  be ing  pu t  by  

the  Cha i rperson to  –  th rough a  d i rec t i ve  to  ge t  in format ion  20 

as  par t  o f  the  Commiss ion ’s  invest iga t ion .   You unders tand  

tha t?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you want  to  say anyth ing  about  my  

in te rpre ta t ion  tha t  your  answer  to  –  seems to  be :   Do not  
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ask  me about  tha t .  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you  

one more  quest ion .   I f  you  read 300 to  303.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And tha t  i s  a  fac t ,  i s ,  you a re  te l l ing  

the  Cha i rperson tha t  you have never  been to  the  Gupta ’s .  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  i f  you  read i t ,  you  say:  10 

“The on ly  person who p laces me there  is  

Wi tness 3  and he  is  no t  to  be  be l ieved. . . ”  

 So the  ne t  e f fec t  i s ,  you d id  no t  go  there .    

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r,  I  wou ld  no t .   I f  tha t  was the  case,  I  

wou ld  no t  have led  the  tes t imony I  led .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  le t  me . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ac tua l l y. . .   I  am sor ry.   Ac tua l l y,  

Mr  S ingh,  i f  you  w i l l  look  a t  pa rag raph 301.   You say:  

“Moreover,  I  w ish  to  po in t  ou t  tha t  there  is  

no . . .  ob jec t i ve  ev idence to  subs tant ia te  h is  20 

a l legat ion  per ta in ing  to  my v is i t  to  the  

Saxonwold  res idence o f  the  Gupta ’s ”  

 That  seems to  me to  be  say ing :   Any a l legat ion  

tha t  I  v is i ted  the  Gupta ’s  i s  no t  substant ia ted .   As  opposed  

to  say ing :   Look,  I  have been to  the  Gupta ’s  bu t  no t  under  
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the  c i r cumstances tha t  he  says I  went  there .    

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  m igh t  be  m isunders tand ing  you  

but  I  th ink  the  response in  paragraph 301 re la tes  to  the  

a l legat ions tha t  he  was mak ing  to  my bus iness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.   Yes,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  o f  course ,  I  am sure  you accept  tha t  

i t  wou ld  have been bet te r  fo r  you  to  say:   Wel l ,  I  deny the  

a l legat ions tha t  I  v is i ted  the  Gupta  res idence under  the  

c i rcumstances tha t  he  ou t l ines  bu t  I  d id  go  there  fo r  10 

cu l tu ra l  occas ions and fo r  re l ig ious occas ions.   So v is i t ing  

there  i s  no t  den ied .   I t  i s  v i s i t ing  the re  under  the  

c i rcumstances tha t  he  g i ves  tha t  i s  be ing  den ied .   I  am 

sure  tha t  wou ld  have been much bet te r,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH :    I  concede tha t  tha t  wou ld  have been a  be t te r  

way to  contex tua l i se  the  sub jec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you.   Now,  DCJ,  wh i ls t  we  

are  in  th is  f i l e ,  we were  a t  page 1500.   Cou ld  I  ask  you. . .  

Perhaps I  shou ld  jus t  dea l  w i th  the  a f f idav i t  now because i t  20 

is  in  the  same f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine ,  ja .   That  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  cou ld  you p lease  go to  

page 1507?  

MR SINGH :    1507?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    1507.   There  you w i l l  f ind  an  

a f f idav i t .   I f  you  go to  page 1  –  o f  yours  –  go  to  page  1539.   

That  i s  the  s ignature  page and i t  conta ins  as  ser ies  o f  

annexures tha t  run  up  unt i l  1563.   Would  you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now i f  you  go back to  page 1539,  

wou ld  you conf i rm tha t  you swore  to  th is  a f f idav i t  on  the 

12 t h  day o f  March  2021?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  p resume ear l ie r  th is  morn ing?  10 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And wou ld  you conf i rm the  t ru th  and 

accuracy o f  th is  a f f idav i t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Mr  Cha i rperson,  i f  I  

cou ld  ask  you,  p lease,  to  admi t  Mr  S ingh ’s  a f f idav i t  tha t  

commences a t  page 1507 as  Exh ib i t  BB-23.8?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Ano j  S ingh ’s  a f f idav i t  s ta r t ing  a t  page  

1507 is  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and w i l l  be  marked as  

Exh ib i t  BB-23.8 .  20 

ANOJ SINGH’S AFFIDAVIT  STARTING AT PAGE 1507 IS  

ADMITTED AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT  BB-23.8 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Mr  S ingh,  on  these ten  

or  so  occas ions tha t  you went  to  the  Gupta  res idence,  who  

d id  you see the re? 
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MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  o ther  than the  fami l y  tha t  was 

present  and o the r  inv i tees,  no  one o f  s ign i f i cance or  tha t  I  

reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  d id  you,  fo r  example ,  see 

Mr  Mole fe  there?   By h is  own admiss ion ,  he  went  o f ten  

inc lud ing  to  fami ly  funct ions.  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  reca l l .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   You cannot  reca l l  anyone tha t  

worked a t  Transnet  there  on  those ten  occas ions?  

MR SINGH :    Not  o f f  hand Mr  Cha i r.   As  I  sa id  i t  was 10 

probab ly  ten  occas ions over  a  pe r iod  o f  f i ve  to  s i x  years .   

So I  do  no t . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   A l r igh t .   I  want  to  tu rn  to  

another  top ic  and  tha t  re la tes  to  the  Manganese Expans ion  

Pro jec t .   Can I  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  Transnet  Bund le  4  

beh ind  you and Exh ib i t  19?  

MR SINGH :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [ speaker  moved away f rom 

microphone]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Somebody mus t  jus t  he lp  the  w i tness,  

p lease.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Someone wi l l  he lp  you now.  

MR SINGH :    Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON :    You might  w ish  to  repeat  the  bund le  

Mr  Myburgh.   I  th ink  your  a t to rney might  no t  have heard  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Transnet  Bund le . . .  [ speaker  moves 
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away f rom microphone –  unc lear ]   A t  page 31.  

MR SINGH :    The  b lack  numbers  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   So th is  i s  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Mr  Henk Beste r.   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  a t  the  t ime he worked  

fo r  Hatch  Consu l t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say 21  o r  31?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  had.   I  wanted to  go  to  31  bu t  then  

I  see tha t  inadver ten t ly  went  to  s ta r t  a t  the  s ta tement .   i t  

ac tua l l y  s ta r t s  a t  page 24.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So you w i l l  go  to  31 ,  tha t  i s  10 

where  your  quest ions . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  have 31.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .    

MR SINGH :    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    24 .   I t  s ta r ts  a t  24 .  

MR SINGH :    The  b lack  numbers?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB-19.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  use  the  b lack  numbers .   Check on 

the  sp ine  whether  i t  i s  the  cor rec t  one.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  BB-19.   I  can  see i t  f rom 

here .   I t  i s  the  next  d iv ide r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  s ta r t  a f resh.   Mr  S ingh,  the  

f i rs t  th ing  is  to  check i f  i t  i s  the  r igh t  bund le  and you w i l l  

see  tha t  on  the  sp ine  where  i t  says ,  th is  one is  Transnet  
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Bund le  4 .   Transnet  Bund le  4 .   And then you w i l l  go  to  the 

r igh t  page.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  th ink  the  r igh t  page 31.   Have you 

got  i t?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you got  i t ,  the  b lack  31?  

MR SINGH :    So  we a re  go ing  to  31  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry,  Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH :    A re  we go ing  to  31?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You –  th is  i s  the  a f f idav i t  o r  

s ta tement  o f  Mr  Henk Beste r.   You have read  i t ,  

p resumable  and you have read i t  care fu l l y?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you have noted tha t  there  are  

many re fe rences to  you in  th is  s ta tement?  

MR SINGH :    Cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You have  noted as  we l l  tha t  he  20 

a l leges tha t  you a t tended a  meet ing  together  w i th  Mr  Essa.  

MR SINGH :    I  do  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  want  to  then dea l  w i th  those 

passages i f  I  cou ld?  

MR SINGH :    Sure .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    The f i rs t  paragraph where  you are  

imp l ica ted  is  paragraph 23 a t  page 31.   And he says tha t  

on  the  26 t h  o f  Ju ly,  I  met  w i th  Rud i  Basson,  Transnet  

Cap i ta l  P ro jec ts . . .  [aud io  record ing  ended]  . . . t ime to in fo rm  

h im o f  the  v i s i t  tha t  I  had f rom Padayachee and Reddy and 

the  apparent  ins igh t  they seem to  have in to  Transnet  

mat te rs  as  ou ts ide  compan ies .  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  apo log ise  fo r  in te r rup t ing  

Mr  Myburgh but  I  seem to  have a  c ramp.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry?  10 

MR SINGH :    I  seem to  have a  c ramp on my leg .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR SINGH :    I s  i t  poss ib le  to  jus t  take  a  break?  

CHAIRPERSON :    A break?  

MR SINGH :    Two  minutes?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r i gh t .   Le t  us  ad journ  fo r  f i ve  

m inutes .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you fee l ing  be t te r,  Mr  S ingh?  20 

MR SINGH:    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  am.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  le t  us  cont inue,  Mr  

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   So,  Mr  S ingh,  we were  

a t  page 33 o f  Transnet  bund le  4A,  EXHIBIT 19.   Sor ry ,  
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page 31,  pa ragraph 23.   So I  am go ing  to  fas t - fo rward  jus t  

a  l i t t le  b i t .   What  Mr  Beste r  says i s  tha t  he  has a  meet ing  

together  w i th  Mr  Basson and Ms S t rydom,  th is  i s  what  he  

says a t  23 .   A t  24  he  says tha t :  

“Basson to ld  me  tha t  S ingh wanted a  conf inement  

approva l  cond i t ion  inc luded wh ich  s t ipu la ted  tha t  

PM Af r i ca  and DEC wou ld  f rom par t  o f  the  SD 

component  fo r  phase 1 .   Accord ing  to  Basson,  h im 

and Mr  Gerhard  B ierman,  CFO of  TCP to ld  S ingh  

tha t  i t  wou ld  no t  be  adv isab le  to  s t ipu la te  spec i f i c  10 

compan ies  to  be  used in  SD in i t ia t i ves .   Basson  

sa id  tha t  th is  cond i t ion  was subsequent ly  d ropped. ”  

Do you have any comment  on  tha t  parag raph? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  f i rs t l y ,  in  te rms o f  paragraph 24 we 

note  tha t  there  is  no  conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t  tha t  i s  

submi t ted  o f  Mr  Basson to  th is  ex ten t .   In  add i t ion ,  Mr  

Cha i r ,  Mr  Basson  does cor rec t l y  s ta te  tha t  the  s t ipu la t ion  

as  suggested by  Mr  Beste r  was in  fac t  d ropped.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  quest ion  is  what  do  you have 

to  say about  the  s ta tement  by  Mr  Hank Bester  tha t  Mr  20 

Basson to ld  h im tha t  you wanted the  conf inement  approva l  

cond i t ion  inc luded wh ich  debated tha t  PM Af r i ca  and DEC 

shou ld  fo rm par t  o f  the  SD component .   You have sa id  tha t  

there  i s  no  conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t  by  Basson,  i s  tha t  where  

you s topped or  you wou ld  say yes ,  I  know about  tha t ,  I  d id  
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speak to  Basson or  you say you d id  no t  say  tha t  to  

Basson?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  the  contex t  beh ind  th is  i ssue  

emanates  f rom the  fac t  tha t  the  issue o f  SD and SD be ing  

supp l ied  w i th  –  o r  empowerment ,  as  you wou ld  descr ibe  i t ,  

was a  pa r t i cu la r  p rob lem wi th in  the  env i ronment  w i th in  

wh ich  Mr  Basson and Mr  B ierman opera ted .   They opera ted  

in  a  d iv is ion  o f  Transnet  ca l led  Transnet  Cap i ta l  P ro jec t s  

and Transnet  as  an  s ta te  owned company has an ob l iga t ion  

and i t  i s  conta ined in  i t s ,  you know,  shareho lder  compact  10 

w i th  the  Min is te r  and so  on  i n  the  corpora te  p lan  as  we l l  

bu t  i t  wou ld  advance the  empowerment  and  supp ly  

deve lopment  ob jec t i ves  and th i s  comment  was made  in  tha t  

contex t  p r imar i l y  because o f  the  fac t  tha t  the  Transnet  

Cap i ta l  P ro jec ts ,  as  the  name suggests ,  was invo lved in  

const ruc t ion- re la ted  ac t iv i t y  and one o f  the  issues tha t  was 

h igh l igh ted  re la t ing  to  empowerment  and  supp ly  

deve lopment  was tha t  Transnet  Cap i ta l  P ro jec ts  was 

re la t i ve ly  lagg ing  beh ind  because  o f  the  spec ia l i s t  na ture  

o f  the  work  tha t  i s  conducted by  the  const ruc t ion  company  20 

or  the  eng ineer ing  consu l tan ts .   So in  th is  case,  Mr  Cha i r ,  

we are  ta lk ing  about  the  manganese expans ion  pro jec t .   

Now the  manganese expans ion  pro jec t  a f te r  the  locomot ive  

pro jec t  was probab ly  one o f  the  b iggest  p ro jec ts  tha t  

Transnet  wou ld  under take.   I t  was,  I  th ink ,  in  the  reg ion  o f  
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about  20  b i l l i on  i f  I  am not  m is taken in  te rms  o f  the  

es t imated to ta l  cos t  o f  the  budget .  

 So we rea l l y  saw th is  as  an  oppor tun i ty  to  be  ab le  

to  d r ive  supp ly  deve lopment  us ing  th is  p ro ject  as  i t  re la tes  

to  the  s ize  and the  magn i tude o f  the  pro jec t .   So th is  i s  the  

contex t  w i th in  wh ich  th is  request  was made f rom a  

procu rement  p rocedure  manua l  perspect ive  wh ich  is  the 

document  tha t  gu ides the  p rocu rement  w i th in  Transnet  i t  

wou ld  no t  a l low i t .   So  f rom tha t  perspect ive  i t  was used as  

an  example  fo r  Mr  Basson and Mr  B ierman because Mr  10 

B ierman was the  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  acqu is i t ion  counc i l  a t  

Transnet  Cap i ta l  P ro jec ts  to  be  ab le  to  exp lo re  

oppor tun i t ies ,  op t ions,  a l te rna t ives ,  to  be  ab le  to  improve  

TCP’s  SV scores,  to  enab le  them to  be  a l igned more  to  our  

ta rge ts  and a l so  then t ry  and t ransform the  eng ineer ing  

and the  const ruc t ion  indust ry  space as  i t  re la tes  to  supp ly  

deve lopment .  

 So i t  was not  a  d i rec t  ins t ruc t ion  to  say l i s ten ,  you  

must  do  th is .   As  Mr  Basson concedes tha t  once Mr  

B ierman and Mr  Basson had br ie fed  me regard ing  the i r  20 

de l ibe ra t ions,  the  idea was brough t .   The issue was ,  I  was  

t ry ing  to  convey to  them the  ser iousness w i th  wh ich  they 

need to  look  a t  th is  aspect  to  a l low us  to  be  ab le  to  meet  

Transnet ’s  ob jec t i ves .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  the  answer  i s  yes ,  you d id  
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make tha t  s ta tement  bu t  you are  say ing  you are  p rov id ing  

the  contex t  w i th  wh ich  you made.  

MR SINGH:    Con tex t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  so  a  hearsay and a  lack  o f  a  

conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t  i s  a  non- issue because you  accept  

you sa id  th is ,  th is  i s  what  you wanted.  

MR SINGH:    As  to  whethe r  I  sa id  i t  to  Mr  Basson or  Mr  

B ierman,  tha t  I  am not  too  su re .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  Mr  B ierman,  we know tha t  he  

pu t  in  an  a f f idav i t  and he dea ls  w i th  i t  as  we l l .  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  jus t  tha t  we unders tand th is ,  you  

wanted a  conf inement  approva l  cond i t ion ,  you must  cor rec t  

me i f  I  am wrong ,  inc luded wh ich  s t ipu la te  tha t  PM Af r i ca  

and DEC  shou ld  f rom par t  o f  the  SD component  fo r  phase  

one.  

MR SINGH:    No,  tha t  I  deny,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  what  d id  you want?  

MR SINGH:    As  I  have exp la ined,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  wanted them 

to  exp lore  oppor tun i t ies ,  a l te rna t ives  o f  methods to  enab le  20 

Transnet  Cap i ta l  P ro jec t s  to  meet  i t s  mandates  as  i t  

re la tes  to  t ransfo rmat ion  and supp ly  deve lopment .   As  an  

example ,  I  sa id  why do you not  exp lore  th is?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You wou ld  accept  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  

improper  to  impose on someone l i ke  Hatch  the  appo in tment  
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o f  par t i cu la r  SD par tne rs .  

MR SINGH:   Yes,  I  w i l l .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   So le t  us  go  to  parag raph 

25.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe I  shou ld  say th is  in  fa i rness  

to  you,  Mr  S ingh.   You see,  when you sa id  Mr  Basson had 

not  p rov ided a  conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t  i t  came across as  you 

were  deny ing ,  you were  go ing  to  d ispute  tha t  you made 

tha t  s ta tement  …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  d ispute  the  contex t  o f  the  10 

s ta tement  tha t  I  requested DEC  to  be… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Or  to  be  SD par tners  o f  Hatch .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    My  v iew has a lways  been s i te  deve lopment  

par tners  are  the  cho ice  o f  the  main  cont rac to r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Then a t  25 :  

“La te r  tha t  same day I  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom Basson,   

says  Bester  who requested tha t  Hatch  s ign  an  MOU 20 

w i th  PM Af r i ca  and DEC.   Basson d id  no t  g i ve  me a  

reason fo r  th is  request  and I  wou ld  be  specu la t ing  i f  

I  were  to  say I  knew the  reason.   I  can  on ly  imag ine  

tha t  there  must  have been pushback when he  

in fo rmed S ingh  o f  what  I  had to ld  h im about  
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Padayachee and Reddy approach ing  Hatch .   S ingh  

must  have ins i s ted  tha t  the  MOU be s igned. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  deny th is  a l legat ion  and  on Mr  

Bester ’s  own ve rs ion  he  is  specu la t ing  as  to  what  the  

reason cou ld  be .   Second ly,  as  Mr  Beste r  a l ready conceded 

in  paragraph 23,  wh ich  I  was led  on ,  the  requ i rement  was 

not  even enforced.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you accept  though o r  do  you  

d ispute  tha t  Mr  Beste r  was reques ted to  s ign  an  MOU wi th  10 

PM Af r i ca  and DEC? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  cannot  comment ,  I  was not  par ty  

to  those d i scuss ions be tween Mr  Beste r  and DEC  or  PM 

Af r i ca .   I  do  no t  reca l l  th is  request ,  the  request  never  came 

f rom me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then le t  us  ge t  to  parag raph 29 a t  

page …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  a l so ,  Mr  –  so r ry,  sor ry,  jus t  one fu r ther  

comment .   Mr  Cha i r,  a t  the  ou tse t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  d raw the  

Commiss ion ’s  a t ten t ion  to  one fac t .   These in te rac t ions,  20 

whethe r  i t  be  Mr  Basson w i th  Mr  Beste r  and Mr  Bes ter  w i th  

Ms S t rydom because I  am sure  we  are  go ing  to  led  w i th  Ms  

S t rydom’s  ev idence as  we l l ,  i s  h igh ly  i r regu la r  in  i ts  na ture  

because these th ings ac tua l l y  happen ing ,  as  the  Cha i r  w i l l  

see ,  these th ings  are  happen ing  as  a  tender  p rocess o f  the  
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p rov is ion  o f  these EPCM serv ices  un fo ld ing .   I t  i s  h igh ly  

i r regu lar  fo r  Mr  Beste r  to  engage in  th is  t ype o f  behav iou r  

equa l ly  so  fo r  Mr  Basson and fo r  Ms S t rydom g iven the  

pos i t ions  tha t  they have in  the  pro jec t .   Mr  Beste r  wou ld  

have repor ted  to  Mr  Basson as  a  Transnet  equ iva len t .   Ms.  

S t rydom was the  pro jec t  manager  re la t ing  to  the  MEP,   

p ro jec t ,  the  manganese expans ion  pro jec t .   So they had  

very  sen ior  pos i t ions  and fo r  them to  be  in te rac t ing  w i th  Mr  

Beste r,  a  po ten t ia l  serv i ce  p rov ide r  on  these  mat te rs  

dur ing  a  l i ve  p rocurement  p rocess is  h igh l y  i r regu la r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  Mr  S ingh,  perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  

ask  you to  keep tha t  bund le  open and move to  Mr  Bester ’s  

a f f idav i t  –  sor ry,  Mr  B ierman ’s  a f f idav i t .   Th is  i s  Transnet  

bund le  4 ,  EXHIBIT BB21.    

MR SINGH:    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can I  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  page 

928?  Jus t  in  re la t ion  to  your  ev idence tha t  you were  no t  

p ropos ing  spec i f i c  SD par tne rs ,  you wou ld  have seen a t  

parag raph 18 a t  928 tha t  Mr  B ierman says tha t  he  gave you  

feedback v ia  a  Whatsapp.    20 

MR SINGH:    Indeed,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  says :  

“Ano j ,  on  manganese conf inement ,  my procurement  

team wants  to  s t rang le  me.   The v iew is  tha t  be  

des ignat ing  a  spec i f i c  company as  SD o f  
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subcont rac t ing  the  p rocess w i l l  fa i l  fa i rness  

t ransparency and equ i tab le  tes t .   We have  

cons idered opt ions and invest iga ted  th is  p rev ious ly.   

I t  wou ld  be  great  to  do  th is  bu t  we are  no t  a l lowed 

to .   I f  Transnet  chooses to  go  th is  rou te  we w i l l  s t i l l  

have to  app ly  th is  cons is ten t ly. ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Does i t  no t  appear  f rom tha t  

Whatsapp tha t  you were  propos ing  spec i f i c  SD par tners?  10 

MR SINGH:    Aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  comes back to  the  i ssue o f  

me request ing  a  pr inc ip le  to  be  exp lored or  a l te rna t ives  to  

be  exp lo red and la te r  on  you w i l l  see  tha t  there  i s  a  long  

Whatsapp message f rom Mr  B ie rman aga in  dea l ing  w i th  

th is  top ic .   But  aga in  f rom tha t  Whatsapp message  you w i l l  

see  tha t  the  issue tha t  was be ing  d iscussed was an issue 

o f  p r inc ip le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  quest ion  is  whether  when you  

read paragraph 18 o f  Mr  B ierman ’s  a f f idav i t  w i th  the  

quota t ion  o f  tha t  message,  you say a  Whatsapp message.  20 

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  Mr  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot  hear  me? 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   You see,  I  am used to  a 

s i tua t ion  where  my –  everybody  hears  me because my 
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vo i ce  is  ra ther  loud but  la te ly  there  have been compla in ts  

tha t  I  cannot  be  heard ,  so  -  okay.   No,  I  was say ing  Mr  

Myburgh ’s  quest ion  to  you was whether  you do not  concede 

tha t  a  read ing  o f  parag raph 18 o f  Mr  B ierman ’s  a f f idav i t  

w i th  tha t  quota t ion  o f  a  Whatsapp message you  do not  

concede tha t  appears  tha t  you had spoken to  h im about  

des ignat ing  a  spec i f i c  company as  a  subcont rac to r  o r  SD,  

Just  f rom the  message in  tha t  paragraph.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  th is  aga in  re fers  to  a  pr inc ip le ,  

cor rec t?   I t  does not  ment ion  them by name.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  second  sentence says:  

“The v iew is  tha t  i s  tha t  by  des ignat ing  a  spec i f i c  

company as  SD or  subcont rac t ing  the  process,  the  

subcont rac t ing  process w i l l  fa i l  fa i rness,  

t ransparency and  equ i tab le  tes t . ”  

That  sentence comes a f te r  the  f i rs t  sentence where  he  

says”  

“Ano j ,  on  manganese conf inement ,  my procu rement  

team wants  to  s t rang le  me. ”  

MR SINGH:    Agreed,  s i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Why do they want  to  s t range h im?  I t  

wou ld  seem on the  face  o f  i t  tha t  i t  i s  because o f  the  v iew 

wh ich  is  conta ined –  wh ich  he  re fers  to  in  h is  second  

sentence because o f  the  v iew tha t  a  spec i f i c  company must  

be  des ignated as  SD or  subcont rac tor.    
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MR SINGH:    I  th ink  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    S ince he is  wr i t ing  to  you… 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  g ives  the  impress ion ,  pr ima fac ie  a t  

leas t  to  me tha t  he  is  wr i t ing  to  you because you are  the  

one who may have wanted tha t  a  spec i f i c  company be 

des ignated as  SD.   So the  quest ion  f rom Mr  Myburgh was  

whethe r  you do not  concede tha t  a  read ing  o f  th is  message  

such as  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  concede tha t  a f te r  the  read ing  the  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The second sentence.  

MR SINGH:    The f i rs t  sentence o f  tha t  [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  wh ich  says:  

“A f te r  conc lud ing  our  p ro f i le  o f  the  two compan ies . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Wh ich  I  w i l l  assume is  DEC and there  is  one  

o the r,  I  cannot  remember  i t s  name.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  now you  concede what?  20 

MR SINGH:    That  there  was a  request  f rom me to  co-h i re  

two compan ies .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  I  see .    Mr  S ingh,  can I  jus t  

perhaps –  I  mean t  ac tua l l y  to  s ta r t  ou t  by  ask ing  you more  

genera l  quest ions.   Was there  a  t ime when you were  
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employed as  Transnet  where  you became a t  leas t  

susp ic ious o f  the  fac t  tha t  th is  SD par tne r,  p rov i s ion  fo r  SD 

par tners  was be ing  exp lo i ted  and manipu la ted?  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l  the  exact  events .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  you have no doubt  re f lec ted  

care fu l l y  on  your  t ime a t  Transnet ,  backwards,  no t  so?  

MR SINGH:    You mean s ince  I  have le f t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And in  te rms o f  how th ings have now 

unfo lded?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you  have pa id  a t ten t ion  to  

ev idence tha t  has been g i ven.   Do you have any sense a t  

the  t ime tha t  the re  were  p rob lems wi th  SD par tners  and  

tha t  they were  be ing  used in  an  i r regu lar  way? 

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  I  can ag ree w i th  you on 

tha t  one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  I  am not  ask ing  you to  agree,  I  

am ask ing  you d id  you have a  sense,  d id  you have any 20 

susp ic ion  tha t  SD par tne rs  were  be ing  used in  an  i r regu la r  

way?  

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now in  re la t ion  to  th is  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  

Beste r,  as  I  unders tand i t  you want  to  essent ia l l y  de le te  
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your  invo lvement  …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You say you were  no t  invo lved,  I  

mean essent ia l l y  when you take  issue w i th  the  p laces 

where  you re fer  t o .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  you  accept  f rom an overa l l  

perspect ive  th is  re f lec t s  a  very  ser ious s i tua t ion ,  does i t  

no t ,  o f  an  abuse o f  the  SD par tner  p rocess.   

MR SINGH:    On whose –  on  whose s ide ,  s i r?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  Mr  Bester ’s  vers ion .  

MR SINGH:    In  te rms o f  the  ac t ions o f  DEC or  the  ac t ions  

o f  Transnet  o r  the  ac t ions o f  Hatch?  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  th ink  Mr  Myburgh what  he  is  ask ing  

is  when you say –  when you ask  h im whether  he  does not  

accept  tha t  th is  ev idence re f lec ts  very  –  re f lec t s  an  abuse  

o f  the  sys tem,  I  th ink  he  wants  to  know abuse by  whom.    I  

th ink  you wanted to  know abuse by  whom?  Is  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  yes ,  exact ly,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  cer ta in ly  by  the  SD par tners .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  I  cannot  comment  on  the  

ac t ions o f  DEC or  any o the r  SD par tner  tha t  I  have not  

engaged w i th  bu t  cer ta in ly  the  env i ronment  i s  one  where  

peop le  wou ld  ord inar i l y  unders tand tha t  there  a re  pro jec ts  
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tha t  a re  about  to  be  launched by  Transnet ,  whethe r  i t  be  

locomot ives ,  whether  i t  be  the  manganese expans ion  

pro jec t ,  the  po r t  expans ion  pro jec t ,  p ipe l ine  pro jec t  and  

they know when  these,  you know,  RFPs go out  in to  the  

market  and they  engage ac t ive l y  w i th  po ten t ia l  serv i ce  

prov iders  and tha t  i s  as  fa r  as  I  know as to  how th is  

indust ry  opera tes .   L ike  in  a l l  indust r ies  maybe there  a re  

peop le  tha t ,  you know,  are  unscrupu lous and  wou ld  

probab ly  use i t  fo r  o ther  purposes but  i f  you  l ook  a t  th is  

spec i f i c  example ,  th is  spec i f i c  example ,  as  we,  f rom a  10 

Transnet  pe rspec t ive ,  we wanted to  advance the  ob jec t i ves  

o f  enhanc ing  the  SD cr i te r ia  and we ach ieved tha t .   Hatch  

was appo in ted ,  they agreed to  a  50% thresho ld  and i t  came 

wi th  an  op in ion ,  so  f rom Transnet ’s  perspect i ve  we 

ach ieved a l l  o f  the  ob jec t i ves  tha t  we wanted and i t  was a  

des i rab le  ou tcome fo r  us  as  Transnet .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Whi ls t  we are  in  the  B ierman f i le ,  i f  

you  s t i l l  have i t  there ,  cou ld  you tu rn  to  page 935 p lease? 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Here  you see tha t  Mr  B ierman send 20 

you,  i t  seems,  a  pro f i l i ng  o f  DEC,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  what  you wanted h im to  do ,  

to  p ro f i le  th is  par t i cu la r  SD par tne r.  

MR SINGH:    And  apparent ly  one o ther.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   A l r igh t ,  i f  we go back  then to 

parag raph 29 a t  page 33 o f  bund le  4A.  

MR SINGH:    Th i s  i s  Beste r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  parag raph 29,  on  o r  about  1  

August  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  we  are  go ing  back  to  Mr  

Bester ’s  one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Bester ’s  a f f idav i t ,  yes .  

MR SINGH:    The  paragraph?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    29 .  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     

“On or  about  1  August  I  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom 

Padayachee who ind ica ted  he wou ld  l i ke  to  see me 

aga in .   We agreed to  meet  on  5  August  2013.   A t  

the  meet ing  Padayachee and Reddy adv i sed tha t  

the  conf inement  approva l  was imminent  bu t  Hatch  

needed to  s ign  an  addendum to  the  MOU tha t  Hatch  

had amended.   Before  conf inement  cou ld  be  

f ina l i sed i t  was c lear  tha t  they were  no t  happy w i th  20 

Hatch ’s  p roposed  amendments ,  I  unders tood th is  to  

mean tha t  e i the r  S ingh wou ld  no t  approve the  

conf inement  in  o rder  fo r  Mo le fe  to  g ive  f ina l  

approva l .   A l te rna t ive ly,  bo th  Mole fe  and S ingh  

wou ld  no t  g ive  the  necessary  approva ls . ”  
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Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  deny the  a l legat ions conta ined in  

th is  paragraph,  i t  i s  c lear ly  and patent ly  obv ious tha t  Mr  

Beste r  i s  specu la t ing  aga in .   He does not  –  when he is  

conf ron ted by  Padayachee and the  o ther  gent lemen he  

does not  enqu i re  f rom them as to  why they say th is ,  so  he  

is  now p ro fess ing  and spur ious a l legat ion  tha t  imp l ica tes  

myse l f  and Mr  Mo le fe .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  le t  us  then go p lease to  

parag raph 35.  10 

MR SINGH:    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  we need to  jus t  g i ve  some 

contex t  to  th is .   A t  parag raph 34:  

“On the  morn ing  o f  7  August  Gray and I  met  w i th  

S t rydom at  Woodmead to  adv ise  her  more  fu l l y  o f  

the  s i tua t ion .   Th is  resu l ted  i n  S t rydom ca l l ing  

S isheke(? ) ,  genera l  counse l  fo r  TFR a t  the  t ime .   

S isheke requested tha t  we,  Gray,  S t rydom and me 

come to  the  Car l t on  Cent re  immedia te ly  to  b r ie f  he r.   

We met  S isheke a t  the  Wimpy a t  Car l ton  Cent re  and 20 

prov ided her  w i th  a  fu l l  debr ie f  o f  what  had  

t ransp i red  up  to  da te .   S isheke ind ica ted  tha t  Hatch  

had done the  r igh t  th ing  to  e leva te  the  mat te r  to  

TFR.   We showed the  S isheke the  proposed  

addendum by Mr  Padayachee and Reddy wh ich  she  
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photographed us ing  her  iPad.   S isheke then  

ind ica ted  tha t  she w i l l  in fo rm the  r igh t  peop le  a t  

Transnet  and tha t  Hatch  shou ld  take  no fu r ther  

s teps.   She fu r ther  adv i sed tha t  Hatch  shou ld  send  

her  in  due course  an a f f idav i t  v ia  emai l  to  a  pr iva te  

Gmai l  account  se t t ing  ou t  exact ly  what  had  

t ransp i red . ”  

35  –  so  tha t  i s  the  background.  

“However,  I  was la te r  in fo rmed by  S t rydom tha t  the 

mat te r  was e levated to  S ingh who cons idered the 10 

mat te r  c losed and tha t  no  fu r ther  ac t ion  is  to  be 

taken.   Th i s  was  the  same message tha t  S t rydom 

to ld  me rece ived f rom Bouwer. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?   

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  aga in  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  h igh l igh t  

tha t  i t  i s  aga in  very  i r regu lar  fo r  now not  even Mr  Bester  

bu t  Mr  Gray,  who is  even more  sen io r  than Mr  Beste r,  to  

engage in  aga in  these d i scuss ions  w i th  Ms S t rydom dur ing  

a  pe r iod  o f  t ime when th i s  i s  a  l i ve  procurement  event  tha t  

i s  be ing  conducted,  eve ry  s ing le  Transnet  tender  tha t  i s  20 

issued w i th  a  qua l i f i ca t ion  or  a  h igh l igh t  o r  emphas ises the  

fac t  tha t  i f  they  are  any issues re la t ing  to  any i r regu lar i t ies  

tha t  anyone f inds  whethe r  i t  be  on  the  employer ’s  s ide ,  

whethe r  i t  be  on  the  employee ’s  s ide .   When  I  say  

employer,  employee,  I  am ta lk ing  about  i t  in  EPCM terms.   
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They are  compel led  to  repor t  th is  th rough the  Transnet  t ip -

o f f  anonymous ho t l ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  assuming you are  r igh t ,  I  

mean,  do  you th ink  tha t  adds or  subt rac ts  f rom th is  

vers ion?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you th ink  i t  adds o r  subt rac ts  

f rom Mr  Bester ’s  vers ion?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  i t  sub t rac ts  f rom Mr  Bester ’s  

vers ion  because  he was aware  o f  the  appropr ia te  10 

procedure  to  use.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  he  is  never the less  te l l ing  h i s  

s to ry,  Mr  S ingh,  and perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you – you  

have a l ready g iven us  tha t  vers ion ,  you have to ld  us  o f  the  

i r regu lar i t ies ,  can you now dea l  w i th  paragraph 35 where  

you re fer  to?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  have not  ment ioned any 

i r regu lar i t ies  tha t  invo lve  myse l f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  no ,  no ,  I  am not  suggest ing  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  you have to ld  us  about  how you 

th ink  Mr  Bester  conducted h imse l f  in  an  i r regu la r  fash ion .   

MR SINGH:    Yes  and I  am h igh l igh t ing  i t  now tha t  even the  

more  sen ior  person in  Hatch  is  engag ing  in  the  same 

act iv i t ies .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Dea l  w i th  paragraph 35.  

MR SINGH:    Oh,  okay,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  la te  on  Fr iday bu t  rea l l y  the  

purpose o f  th is  i s  fo r  you to  answer  the  paragraphs where  

you are  imp l ica ted .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  the  reason I  go  back to  34 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    I s  tha t  the  avenues tha t  Ms S t rydom was a lso  

aware  o f  was tha t  she shou ld  have fo l lowed the  Transnet  

t r ip -o f f  anonymous hot l ine .   There  is  a  record  o f  th is ,  i t  is  10 

ou tsourced,  i t  was outsourced I  th ink  De lo i t te  o r  one o f  the  

compan ies  to  be  ab le  to  take  reco rd  o f  these th ings,  there  

was comple te  –  there  was a  comp le te  po l i cy  in  how these  

issues must  be  dea l t  w i th .   So i f  th is  compla in t ,  as  i t  i s  

recorded in  paragraph 35,  fo r  example ,  reached the  t ip -o f f  

anonymous hot l ine ,  tha t  t ip -o f f  wou ld  have  been 

automat ica l l y  esca la ted  to  Mr  Mole fe  and esca la ted  to  the  

Cha i rman o f  the  aud i t  commi t tee .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  answer  

parag raph 35?  20 

MR SINGH:    Based on what  I  have sa id ,  I  am respond ing  

to  paragraph 35 by  say ing  I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  tha t  was Mr  

Bouwer ’s  response.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  about  you rs?  

“However  I  was la te r  in fo rmed by  S t rydom tha t  the  
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mat te r  was e levated to  S ingh who cons idered the  

mat te r  c losed. ”  

That  i s  rea l l y  wha t  I  am t ry ing  to  ask  you to  dea l  w i th .  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  tha t  i s  my po in t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t .  

MR SINGH:    I f  there  were  i r regu la r i t ies  tha t  they were  

respond ing  to… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes?  

MR SINGH:    They wou ld  have not  ra ised i t  w i th  me ,  I  was  

the  one tha t  was imp l ica ted .   There  wou ld  have been  10 

a l te rna t ives  tha t  they wou ld  have exp lo red,  wh ich  is  the  

t ip -o f fs  anonymous hot l ine .   Ms S t rydom has access to  Mr  

Gama who is  her  d i rec t  repor t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Who i t  was  ra ised was S isheke the  

genera l  counse l  o f  TFR.  

MR SINGH:    Exact ly,  so  tha t  i s  my  po in t ,  i f  she  d id  no t  ge t  

an  appropr ia te  response and th i s  wh ich  is  be ing  e levated  

to  me,  the  imp l ica ted  person,  and me mak ing  a  dec is ion  

about  what  imp l ica tes  me and c los ing  the  mat te r  in  my v iew 

in  an  inappropr ia te  response,  so  she wou ld  have went  and 20 

e levated i t  to  Mr  Gama.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  S ingh,  i s  i t  t rue  or  i s  no t  

t rue  tha t  the  mat te r  was e levated to  you and you were  

go ing  to  cons ider  and you cons ider  the  mat te r  c losed? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  mat te r  was never  e leva ted to  
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me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  perhaps I  cou ld  dea l  jus t  

w i th  one more  paragraph.   A t  47  p lease a t  page 41,  

parag raph 47.  

MR SINGH:    47 .   Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“To  the  best  o f  my knowledge says  Bester  –  sor ry  to  

my reco l lec t ion  the  meet ing  w i th  P i ta  wh ich  was se t  

up  to  inc lude S ingh was he ld  on  22 October  2013.    10 

I  annex a  meet ing  inv i te  f rom P i ta  as  HP14.   Th i s  

meet ing  was a t t ended by  Graham and me and  

s tar ted  a lmost  an  hour  la te  a f te r  S ingh had not  

a r r i ved.    P i ta  sa id  tha t  S ingh requested tha t  he  

speaks to  us  as  he ,  S ingh,  was busy,  bu t  we cou ld  

see h im,  S ingh,  pac ing  up  and down in  h i s  o f f i ce  

and even pass us  on  h is  way to  the  res t room. ”  

Do you have anyth ing  to  say about  tha t .     

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  aga in  I  do  no t  have a  d i rec t  

reco l lec t ion  o f  th is  meet ing ,  bu t  I  assume tha t  the  meet ing  20 

d id  occur,  because Mr  Bester  a t taches a  meet ing  inv i te  fo r  

tha t  meet ing .   G iven the  da te  o f  th is  meet ing  in  the 

procu rement  –  in  the  t ime l ine  o f  the  procurement  events  

tha t  was be ing ,  tha t  was unfo ld ing ,  in  te rms o f  the  award  to  

Hatch ,  I  can on ly  unders tand tha t  th is  meet ing  was  not  fo r  
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us  to  d iscuss DEC and whethe r  they inc luded or  exc luded.   

Th is  meet ing  was pa r t i cu la r ly  ca l led  fo r  Hatch  to  

unders tand the  need  fo r  us  to  meet  a  50% SD spec ia l  and  

fo r  them to  ac tua l l y  ag ree tha t  the  100 o r  150mi l l ion  or  

200mi l l ion  p remium tha t  they had inc luded in  the  tender  a l l  

tha t  c r i te r ia  was unacceptab le .   And tha t  i s  the  reason why 

Mr  P i ta ,  who was  the  Ch ie f  Document  Off i cer  a t  the  t ime,  

a t tended tha t  meet ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You fee l  you have answered what  I  

pu t  to  you?  10 

MR SINGH:   You asked,  you read th is  paragraph and you  

asked me my thoughts .     

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank you.   And then f ina l l y  

can I  jus t  take  you p lease to  page 44,  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  page 44?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  we can fas t  fo rward  as  lo t  o f  

th is ,  paragraphs 54,  55 ,  56   your  name is  ment ioned but  

e f fec t i ve l y  what  i s  contended is  tha t  Mr  Reddy mus t  se t  up  

a  meet ing  w i th  you,  and I  want  to  ge t  to  tha t  meet ing ,  

parag raph 57.     20 

“On my ar r i va l  a t  Me l rose Arch  as  I  wa lked towards  

the  res tau rant  I  was met  by  a  gent leman who  

in t roduced h imse l f  as  Mr  Sa l im Essa.   He sa id  tha t   

he  was there  to  meet  w i th  us  as  par t  o f  the  

d iscuss ion  w i th  S ingh and needed to  see i f  the  
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res taurant  i s  c lean.   I  asked h im  where  Mr  S ingh 

was and he sa id  he  w i l l  ca l l  h im when he,  Essa,  i s  

ready.   I  asked Essa whether  he  h imse l f  works  fo r  

Transnet  and he responded tha t  he  is  “do ing  a  l o t  o f  

th ings ”  o r  someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t  o f  I  have a  lo t  o f  

bus inesses.   He c lear ly  had no in ten t ion  o f  

answer ing  my quest ion  in  de ta i l .   I  was surp r ised a t  

the  t ime but  as  soon as  Essa ca l led  S ingh ar r i ved a  

few minutes  la te r. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  10 

MR SINGH:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Aga in  Mr  Cha i r  I  deny  

the  a l legat ions conta ined in  th is  pa rag raph as  i t  i s  made by  

Mr  Bester  and I  do  so  fo r  the  fo l low ing reasons.   Mr  Cha i r  

as  Mr  –  o r  Advocate  Myburgh has in t roduced th is  

parag raph he makes re fe rence to  54 ,  55 ,  and 56.   These 

paragraphs need  an unders tand ing  o f  how th is  meet ing  

came about ,  so  by  and la rge  on Mr  Bester ’s  vers ion  th is  

meet ing  came about  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  Hatch  was 

hav ing  prob lems in  se t t lement  o f  the i r  invo ice  w i th  

Transnet  Cap i ta l  P ro jec ts .   A t  the  t ime Transnet  Cap i ta l  20 

Pro jec ts  was invo lved in  the  new market  p ro jec t  p ipe l ine  

pro jec t  and those  are  the  invo ices tha t  they had a  p rob lem 

be ing  se t t led .   I  don ’ t  reca l l  the  exact  i ssue,  I  do  no t  reca l l  

the  fac t  tha t  they were  no t  pa id ,  bu t  tha t  i s  what  Mr  Bester  

says.     
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 Now there  is  two issues,  the  f i rs t  issue is  Mr  Bester  

in  te rms o f  h is  t i t le  was a  d i rec to r  fo r  Ra i l ,  now why  wou ld  

a  d i rec to r  fo r  Ra i l  t ry  and se t t le  os tens ib ly  p ipe l ine  

invo i ces,  wh ich  I  wou ld  assume w i th in  the  Hatch  h ie ra rchy  

wou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  by  somebody e lse .    

 So he re ferences  two o the r  co l leagues o f  h i s  tha t  

were  inv i ted  to  th is  meet ing .   He does not  a t tach  any 

meet ing  inv i tes  fo r  these two  ind iv idua ls ,  as  in  an  

organ isa t ion  as  b ig  as  Hatch  you wou ld  expect  tha t  these 

th ings wou ld  happen as  a  mat te r  o f  cou rse  th rough  inv i tes ,  10 

or  emai l s .    He d id  a t tach  in  the  meet ing  w i th  Mr  P i ta  as  we  

jus t  heard  a  mee t ing  inv i te .   He does not  a t tach  the  same 

here .  

 Second ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  you mean th i rd ly.  

MR SINGH:    Th i rd ly  he  a t tends the  meet ing  on  h is  own  

in i t ia t ion ,  on  h is  own,  a l leged ly  w i th  the  CFO of  Transnet  

d iscuss d i sputed  invo ice .   For  a  person tha t  i s  emanat ing  

f rom the  Ra i l  bus iness un i t  to  d iscuss d isputed invo ices 

re la ted  to  a  p ipe l ine  pro jec t  w i thout  the  benef i t  o f  any  20 

f inance peop le  f rom Hatch .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So Mr  S ingh d id  you a t tend the  

meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa or  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Myburgh I  have den ied  the  a l legat ions in  

i t s  to ta l i t y  and I  am exp la in ing  to  you why I  have done so .  



12 MARCH 2021 – DAY 360 
 

Page 143 of 145 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  pe rhaps we shou ld  f i rs t  s ta r t  

w i th  tha t .    He says tha t  the  mee t ing  was ca l led ,  Mr  Essa  

was there ,  Mr  Essa ca l led  you ar r i ved a t  the  meet ing .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  I  deny tha t  the  meet ing  was  ca l led .   

I  deny tha t  Mr  Essa was there .   I  deny tha t  I  met  Mr  Bester  

fo r  the  reasons  he se ts  ou t ,  fo r  the  reasons  tha t  I  

ind ica ted .   I t  i s  even fu r ther  very  spur ious or  aga in  i t  

quest ions Mr  Bester ’s  ob jec t i ves  or  character,  hav ing  

h igh l igh ted  a l l  o f  the  issues tha t  he  h igh l igh ted  in  te rms o f  

manner  in  wh ich  he  was dea l ing  w i th  h im on the  10 

conf inement  mat te r  he  now seeks ass is tance f rom Mr  

Padayachee to  be  ab le  to  reso lve  a  prob lem for  h im,  and 

you w i l l  see  Mr  Cha i r  as  we go th rough Phase 2  you w i l l  

f ind  a  s im i la r  p rob lem in  tha t  the  same,  very  same DEC 

tha t  Hatch  is  now compla in ing  about  i s  inc luded as  par t  o f  

Manganese Phase 2  as  a  sub-cont rac tor  and tha t  i s  a f te r  

two add i t iona l  in te rac t ions w i th  Mr  Essa,  o r  re la ted  

in te rac t ions w i th  Mr  Essa.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Cha i rman I  see tha t  i t  i s  ten  to  

four,  i f  th is  i s  an  appropr ia te  t ime to  ad journ  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    To  ad jou rn ,  ja  no  I  th ink  le t  us  ad journ ,  

Mr  Mole fe  i s  done except  a  ve ry  l im i ted  por t ion  o f  h is  

ev idence tha t  we  must  s t i l l  dea l  w i th  then Mr  S ingh s t i l l  

has  qu i te  a  lo t  to  dea l  w i th .  

 What  i s  you r  es t imate  o f  how much t ime you wou ld  
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need w i th  Mr  S ingh . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Two days.  

CHAIRPERSON:    About  two days ,  okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  

w i l l  t ry  and two days somewhere .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And p lease  Cha i rperson don ’ t  fo rge t  

about  Mr  Gama.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes Mr  Gama too ,  and wha t  i s  our  

es t imate?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  he  cou ld  a l so  be  two days.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Two days,  okay,  I  w i l l  have to  do  a  10 

mi rac le  and f ind  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We a re  f lex ib le  and I  am sure  we 

can conv ince ou r  opponents  to  s i t  a t  n igh t  and to  ge t  

squeezed in to  those n igh t  sess ions i f  tha t  wou ld  be  more  

conven ien t  fo r  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  no ,  no  I  th ink  everybody is  

coopera t ive  abou t  the  even ings as  we l l .   Counse l  fo r  Mr  

S ingh?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson as  fa r  as  poss ib le  

we w i l l  de f in i te ly  coopera te  –  you might  no t  be  aware  20 

somet imes there  is  p rear ranged meet ings bu t  we w i l l  dea l  

w i th  i t  as  they come up.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja ,  okay no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  am su re  i t  

i s  the  same wi th  you Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  I  w i l l  t ry  and make sure  the  

da tes  are  so r ted  ou t  as  soon as  poss ib le .  

 Thank you to  eve rybody,  we w i l l  ad jou rn  fo r  the  day,  

jus t  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  on  Monday the re  w i l l  be  no  

hear ing  bu t  on  Tuesday and the  days a f te r  tha t  next  week 

there  w i l l  be  ev idence re la t ing  to  Eskom.  

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:  Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 16 FEBRUARY 2021  


